
 
 
Minutes of the public hearings of the Board of Directors of the Cook County Health and Hospitals System, for the 
purpose of taking public testimony on the FY2012 Proposed Preliminary Budget for the Cook County Health and 
Hospitals System.  These public hearings were held on Monday, September 19, 2011; Tuesday, September 20, 
2011; and Wednesday, September 21, 2011.   
 
 
Note:   CCHHS Proposed FY2012 Preliminary Budget is included as Attachment #1 

Presentation provided by Dr. Terry Mason included as Attachment #2 
All written testimony is included as Attachment #3 

 Transcripts of these hearings are included in Attachment #4  
 
 

Monday, September 19, 2011 at 6:30 P.M. 
 

Second District Courthouse 
5600 Old Orchard Road 

Conference Room 
Skokie, Illinois 

 
Attendance/Call to Order  
 

Director Greenspan welcomed the attendees.  
 

Present:  Director Benn Greenspan, PhD, MPH, FACHE  
 

Additional attendees were: 
 
John Cookinham – System Interim Chief Financial Officer 
Anthony Lisanti - Court Reporter 
Terry Mason, MD – System Interim Chief Executive Officer 
Deborah Santana – Secretary to the Board 

 
Presentation 
 
Dr. Terry Mason, System Interim Chief Executive Officer, provided an informational presentation on the CCHHS 
Proposed FY2012 Preliminary Budget (Attachment #2). 
 
Public Speakers 

 
The following registered public speakers provided testimony: 

 

1. George Blakemore Concerned Citizen 
2. Joseph Flanagan President, J.P. Flanagan Enterprises (regarding Access to Care – written testimony 

also provided) 
3. Adrienne Alexander Policy and Legislative Specialist, AFSCME Council 31 

 
Adjournment 
 

As there were no additional registered speakers present, Director Greenspan declared that the meeting was 
adjourned. 
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Tuesday, September 20, 2011 at 6:30 P.M. 
 

Sixth District Courthouse 
16501 South Kedzie Parkway 

Courtroom 098 
Markham, Illinois 

 
Attendance/Call to Order  
 
Director Carvalho welcomed the attendees.   

 
Present:  Director David Carvalho  
 
Additional attendees were: 
 

John Cookinham – System Interim Chief Financial Officer 
Anthony Lisanti - Court Reporter 
Terry Mason, MD – System Interim Chief Executive Officer 
John Morales – Chief Financial Officer, John H. Stroger, Jr. Hospital of Cook County 
Deborah Santana – Secretary to the Board 

 
Presentation 
 
Dr. Terry Mason, System Interim Chief Executive Officer, provided an informational presentation on the CCHHS 
Proposed FY2012 Preliminary Budget (Attachment #2). 
 
Note:  following the provision of public testimony, Director Carvalho presented several questions and requests for 
further information to management regarding the proposed budget; these questions are included in the transcript 
(Attachment #4). 
 
Public Speakers 

 
The following registered public speakers provided testimony: 

 
 

1. George Blakemore Concerned Citizen 
2. Steven Blaine, PhD Vanguard Health Systems  (regarding Access to Care ) 
3. Leonard Simpson Representative, SEIU Local 73 

 
Adjournment 
 
As there were no additional registered speakers present, Director Carvalho declared that the meeting was adjourned. 
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Wednesday, September 21, 2011 at 1:00 P.M. 
 

Cook County Building 
118 North Clark Street 

Board Room, Room 569 
Chicago, Illinois 

 
Attendance/Call to Order  
 
Director Carvalho welcomed the attendees.   

 
Present:  Chairman Warren L. Batts  
   Directors Hon. Jerry Butler; David Carvalho and Luis Muñoz, MD, MPH 

     
Additional attendees were: 
 

Hon. William Beavers – Cook County Commissioner 
Hon. Earlean Collins – Cook County Commissioner 
John Cookinham – System Interim Chief Financial Officer 
Anthony Lisanti - Court Reporter 
Terry Mason, MD – System Interim Chief Executive Officer 
Deborah Santana – Secretary to the Board 
Carol Schneider – System Interim Chief Operating Officer 
Hon. Deborah Sims – Cook County Commissioner 

 
 

Presentation 
 

Dr. Terry Mason, System Interim Chief Executive Officer, provided an informational presentation on the CCHHS 
Proposed FY2012 Preliminary Budget (Attachment #2). 

 
Public Speakers 

 
The following registered public speakers provided testimony: 

 
 

1. George Blakemore Concerned Citizen 
2. Mark Grach Manager, Grach, Pleko, Sinkhoff, Jones & Bellamy (regarding Access to Care – 

written testimony also provided) 
3. Emilie Junge Representative, Doctors Council SEIU 
4. Frank Borgers Representative, SEIU Local #73 
5. Adrienne Alexander Representative, AFSCME Local #31 
6. Ellen Mason, MD Attending Physician, John H. Stroger, Jr. Hospital of Cook County 
7. Charles Williams, DDS Retired Dentist 
8. Lisa Egan Concerned Citizen 
9. Omar Gobby Interpreter, John H. Stroger, Jr. Hospital of Cook County 
10. Beverly Esters Concerned Citizen 

 

 
Adjournment 
 
As there were no additional registered speakers present, Director Carvalho declared that the meeting was adjourned. 
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Respectfully submitted, 
Board of Directors of the  
Cook County Health and Hospitals System 
 
 

 
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 
Warren L. Batts, Chairman 

 
 

Attest: 
 
 
 
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 
Deborah Santana, Secretary 
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Cook County Health & Hospitals System
P li i FY2012 B d tPreliminary FY2012 Budget

Public Hearing Presentation 
Monday, September 19, 2011

Second District Courthouse SkokieSecond District Courthouse, Skokie

Tuesday, September 20, 2011
Sixth District Courthouse, MarkhamSixth District Courthouse, Markham

Wednesday, September 21, 2011
Cook County Buildingy g
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Strategic Plan - VISION 2015
Core GoalsCore Goals

I.  Access to 
• Eliminate System access barriers at all delivery sites.
• Designate and develop  strategically-located sites for development of 

comprehensive outpatient services

MissionMission Strategic InitiativesStrategic Initiatives

To deliver integrated health 
services with dignity and 

Healthcare Services comprehensive outpatient services.
• Evaluate optimal long-term development of Provident, Oak Forest, and 

ACHN sites.

respect regardless of a 
patient’s ability to pay; 
foster partnerships with 
other health providers and 
communities to enhance 
the health of the public; and 
advocate for policies which

II.  Quality, Service 
E ll &

• Develop an integrated, System-wide approach and supportive infra-
structure for patient-centered  care coordination.advocate for policies which 

promote and protect the 
physical, mental and social 
well being of the people of 
Cook County.

Excellence & 
Cultural Competence

• Implement a program of continuous process improvement:  patient 
care quality, safety, and outcomes.

• Develop a comprehensive  program to  instill cultural competency.

III Service Line
• Develop/strengthen clinical service lines in key disciplines based on 

ti t l ti d

• Implement  a full range of initiatives to improve caregiver/employee 
satisfaction

Vision 2015Vision 2015
In support of its public 
health mission, CCHHS 
will be recognized 
locally, regionally, and 
nationally —and by

III. Service Line 
Strength

patient population needs.  
• Pursue mutually beneficial partnerships with  community providers. 
• Assure the provision of the Ten Essentials of Public Health.

satisfaction.
• Focus on effective recruiting and retention processes.
• Develop a robust program for in-service education and professional 

skill building.

IV. Staff  
Development 

nationally —and by 
patients and 
employees—as a 
progressively evolving 
model for an accessible, 
integrated, patient-
centered, and fiscally-
responsible healthcare • Foster leadership development and succession planning

2

p
system focused on 
assuring high-quality 
care and improving the 
health of the residents of 
Cook County.

V. Leadership & 
Stewardship

• Foster leadership development and succession planning.
• Develop long-term financial plans and  sustaining funding.
• Hold Board and management leadership accountable to agreed-upon 

performance targets.
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Strategic Plan: Vision 2015g
Five Core Goals
I. Significantly improve access.g y p

II. Substantially enhance quality, service excellence, and 
cultural competence.p

III. Build upon clinical strengths. 

IV. Invest in employee and staff development.

V Assure strong leadershipV. Assure strong leadership.

33
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Strategic Plan: Vision 2015-Year One

• Consolidated to one Patient Management and Patient Accounting system

St ateg c a s o 0 5 ea O e
FY2011 Accomplishments

g g y

• Material transformation in Patient Accounting and Rev Cycle improvement

• Converting of Oak Forest Hospital to a Regional Outpatient Center (Oak• Converting of Oak Forest Hospital to a Regional Outpatient Center (Oak 
Forest Health Center Campus)

• Commenced the conversion of Provident Hospital to a Regional 
Outpatient Center with a 25 bed low acuity unit 

• Began replacement of imaging technology throughout the system

• Completing staff reduction and relocations

• Awarded ACHN Joint Commission and other clinical accreditations

47
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Strategic Plan: Vision 2015-Year Twog
FY 2012 Preliminary Budget Assumptions
Stroger HospitalStroger Hospital

 Continue to work toward hospital operational efficiency
 Invest in improving service delivery, quality patient care 

and patient safety initiatives
 Continue to build the selected service lines in Maternal 

Child Health Services ER/Trauma and Surgical ServicesChild Health Services, ER/Trauma and Surgical Services
 Implementing Pre-processing Center for scheduling, 

CareLink, intake improvement
I l t Ph i i Billi Implement Physician Billing 

 Implement Managed Care contracts

59
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Strategic Plan: Vision 2015-Year Two
FY 2012 Preliminary Budget Assumptions
Provident Hospital

 Expand outpatient surgical services to increase system-
wide capacity
E d GYN i l i Expand GYN surgical services

 Add GI services 
 Expand pre-processing center conceptExpand pre processing center concept 
 Build partnerships with FQHCs to increase referral 

opportunities for subspecialties
I l t h i i billi Implement physician billing

 Sustain operational efficiencies

610
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Strategic Plan: Vision 2015-Year Two
FY 2012 Preliminary Budget Assumptions 
Oak Forest Health Center

 Continue immediate care center 24/7 coverage
E d i i Expand primary care services

 Add pain management and urology services
 Renovate ‘E’ building
 Expand digital imaging environment
 Obtain CON designation as an Ambulatory Surgery Center

711
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Strategic Plan: Vision 2015-Year Two
FY 2012 Preliminary Budget Assumptions 
Ambulatory and Community Healthcare Network (ACHN)y y ( )

 Implement primary care strategy to support managed care 
contractingcontracting

 Expand specialty services at Oak Forest and Provident
 Implement physician billing
 Implement pre-processing center, CareLink and centralized 

scheduling
 Continue to focus on improving customer servicep g

811
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Strategic Plan: Vision 2015-Year Twog
FY 2012 Preliminary Budget Assumptions

Office of the Chief Health Administrator

 Pharmacy, Information Technology, Patient Accounts, Legal, 
Compliance, Internal Audit, System Administration, Finance and 
Human Resources

 Major system contracts including PWC and IT support

99
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Strategic Plan: Vision 2015-Year Twog
FY2012 Preliminary Operating Budgets

FY2011 Adjusted 
Budget with FY2012

Affiliate
Budget with 

5% Reduction
FY2012 

Preliminary Budget Difference
Stroger Hospital 408.4 433.3 25.5
Office of the Chief Health 
Administrator 155.5 188.0 32.5
Provident Hospital 62.9 52.1 (10.7)
ACHN 49.6 46.5 (3.1)
O k F H l h C 49 6 35 8 (13 8)Oak Forest Health Center 49.6 35.8 (13.8)
CORE Center 11.3 11.9 0.6
Health – Fixed Charges 112.1 108.8 (3.3)

Total  849.6 877.2 27.7

Cermak Health Services 41.1 39.1 (1.9)
JTDC  3.5 3.9 0.4
D t t f P bli H lth 17 6 17 3 0 3

1010

Department of Public Health 17.6 17.3 0.3
Total 62.3 60.4 (1.8)
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Strategic Plan: Vision 2015-Year Two
FY2012 Preliminary Budget
Sources of Revenue  (in millions)

$75 1

$17.2

$6.0
$1.2

$239.2

$75.1

Medicaid

$131.0

DSH

BIPA

M diMedicare

Commercial

Other RevOther Rev

Other Patient

11
11

$140.0 Total Revenue: $610M 
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Strategic Plan: Vision 2015-Year Two
FY2012 Preliminary BudgetFY2012 Preliminary Budget 
Summary

FY2011 FY2011 FY2012FY2011 
Approved 

Budget

FY2011 
Projected 

Actual 

FY2012 
Preliminary

Budget
Budget

g

Appropriation $911.8 $911.8 $937.6

Revenue 638.0 548.0 610.0

Difference (273.8) (363.8) (327.6)

12
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J~ HANA~AN 
'..:::p· 

September 19, 2011 

ATC Speech at Cook County Hearings 2011 

I 840 OAK AVENUE 

SUITE 320 

EVANSTON, IL 60201-3642 

847.864.7400 

847.556.2396 FAX 

WWW.JPFLANAGANENTERPRISES.COM 

I am Joseph P. Flanagan, President of JP Flanagan Enterprises and Acquirent. I am the 
Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Access to Care program and I am here to thank you for your 
past funding of the Access to Care program and to urge you to include it in the 2012 Cook County budget. 

Access to Care gives the County its value for their money. It has an administrative cost of 5%. Access to 
Care has a staff of 10.5 people, but manages a network of 677 private physicians and 27 private labs and 
radiology and pharmacy vendors. It is an incredibly efficient system whereby increased dollars go to add 
more people to the Access to Care program rather than to pay for any infrastructure. 

Access to Care patients contribute toward their health care expenses. Patients pay the 
Physicians $5 for an office visits and $5 for a specimen collection for lab tests, they pay the hospitals $5 
for a routine x-ray, and they pay the pharmacy $15, $30, or $40 for medication. In 2011 it costs $871.03 
for one person to have a whole year of health care services including prescription drugs. This is a very 
cost-effective method of caring for the uninsured working poor. 

And we could do more. Our committed physician capacity is 24,000 patients, so with more funds to cover 
the cost of the patients, we could immediately place 24,000 needy people with private physicians. 

What I like about Access to Care is that these people are our neighbors. They are linked to private 
physicians, diagnostic services, and pharmacies in their own neighborhoods. They don't need to travel 
long distances with poor public transportation services to get to the doctor, to get an x-ray, or to go to 
Walgreens to fill a prescription. They can schedule their visits to these providers around their work, so 
that they do not lose work time. Their employers, who are mostly small businesses, do not lose their 
productivity. This is a savings to the mom and pop businesses who will suffer if their employees have to 
take days off work to go to the public system for care, to wait in long lines, or make the choice not to go 
and to work sick. 

Public dollars from the county, the state, and from townships and municipalities leverage an estimated 
$5,000,000 in in-kind donations from the private sector. What other programs can you think of that is 
largely publicly funded but operates completely in the private sector? Access to Care represents the best 
kind of public-private partnership, where public dollars go farther because they are used by a charity that 
can get discounts that a public facility cannot. 

I thank you for recognizing the value of Access to Care to the Cook County system and urge you to 
include it in the 2012 budget. 

Joseph P Flanaga 

\ 
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TESTIMONY TO THE COOK COUNTY HEALTH & HOSPITAL SYSTEMS BOARD 
September 21, 2011 

I am Mark Grach, Manager at Grach, Pleko, Sinkhoff, Jones & Bellamy and Chair- Elect 
of the Access to Care program. I am here to thank you for funding the Access to Care 
program in the past and to urge you to fund it in the 2012 budget. 

Access to Care has been part of the delivery system of primary health care since 1991 
when Cook County began providing funding. Access to Care serves the uninsured 
working poor throughout suburban Cook County. We use private physicians who give 
care to uninsured people in their own offices for $68 per person per year and the patient's 
$5 co-payment per visit. Access to Care has no overhead or capital expenses for these 
visits, nor for the diagnostic laboratory tests, x-rays, or prescriptions that the program 
also covers. The Access to Care program operates completely in the private sector of 
medicine. 

The private sector gives discounts and in-kind contributions that would not be available 
to Cook County if it approached them directly. The nearly 700 private physicians who 
care for uninsured working poor patients in Access to Care are estimated to contribute 
$3,000,000 in in-kind contributions. 

Access to Care patients have been cared for in the private sector through the Access to 
Care program. We have opened up the medical infrastructure to a new group of people, 
the uninsured, and actually increased access. 

Access to Care has always been an efficient, cost-effective public-private partnership 
where county dollars go further because they are used by a charity to get discounts from 
the private system. Your $2,000,000 contribution in 2010 leveraged over $5,000,000 in 
in-kind contributions from the private sector. 

Access to Care is the most cost-effective vehicle for Cook County to reach people who 
live far from public facilities. It cost $871.03 for one person to receive a whole year's 
worth of health care services including prescription drugs. If you think of your own 
health insurance costs, that is extremely cost-effective. 
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We thank you for your commitment to Access to Care and ask you to re-instate it in the 
Cook County budget for 20 12 at the $3 million level. With greater funds we can serve 
more people and keep them out of Stroger or Provident Hospitals. We have the 
physicians ready to do so and only lack the funds to fill doctor slots already available. 

Thank you for this opportunity to testify and thank you for funding Access to Care. 

Respectfully submitted, 
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  DIRECTOR GREENSPAN:  Good evening, 1 


everybody.  Welcome to the Cook County Skokie 2 


Courthouse.  This is a meeting of the Cook County 3 


Health and Hospitals System to present a preliminary 4 


budget for the fiscal year 2012, and to hear public 5 


commentary. 6 


   Welcome to you all, and thank you for 7 


coming out. 8 


   I am Benn Greenspan, a member of the 9 


Board of Directors of the Cook County Health and 10 


Hospitals System Board. 11 


  With us tonight is Doctor Terry Mason, the 12 


Interim Chief Executive Officer, who will open the 13 


meeting with the presentation of the budget. 14 


   Doctor Mason. 15 


  DR. MASON:  Thank you, Director Greenspan. 16 


   If I can direct you to the wall, where 17 


this projector is giving the projection of the 18 


budget for the presentation that I am about to make. 19 


   When we started on the budget for 20 


2012, we reflected back to our Strategic Plan.  Our 21 


Strategic Plan -- I am not asking you all to read 22 


this, but the Strategic Plan had in it a mission of 23 


vision; five core goals, matched with five strategic 24 
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initiatives.  We tried to also build our budget 1 


around what the second year of that plan would call 2 


for as best we possibly could. 3 


   Those five core goals, about improving 4 


access; making ourselves better with better quality 5 


and cultural competency; building on the current 6 


strengths that we had clinically; trying to do some 7 


investment in our employees and in our staff; and 8 


also to assure that we had continued strong 9 


leadership in the organization. 10 


   During that time, the first year of 11 


the implementation of the Strategic Plan, there are 12 


a number of things we wanted to highlight.  One of 13 


the things that happened is in December, 2010, we 14 


used to have three accounting systems; one for each 15 


of our hospitals.  Those three accounting systems 16 


were merged, and we were able, with our Cerner 17 


system, to pull together what closely resembled one 18 


patient management and accounting system. 19 


   There was a transformation looking at 20 


how we can do a better job in patient accounting.  21 


With the help of PwC, we began to really look at how 22 


we can improve the revenue cycle.  During that time, 23 


also, we converted Oak Forest Hospital into a 24 
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regional outpatient center on August 16 this year.  1 


Specific need was granted in order for us to make 2 


that change. 3 


   At or around that same time, or during 4 


that time, we also suspended a series of services at 5 


Provident Hospital, and converted it to a regional 6 


outpatient center. 7 


   We also looked at the aging of the 8 


imaging technology particularly at Oak Forest, 9 


Provident, and not leaving Stroger out of the mix.  10 


Most of the imaging technology, that is things we 11 


use to take x-rays -- whether it is just plane x-12 


rays or computerized tomography, or using a CAT 13 


scanner.  At Stroger Hospital, those devices were 14 


the original devices that were built or put there 15 


when the hospital opened. 16 


   We began to really embark upon a very 17 


aggressive replacement of all of the imaging 18 


technologies at Stroger Hospital.  We are looking 19 


also to make those same investments at both Oak 20 


Forest and Provident. 21 


   Because of the change in the shifts, 22 


it was really a shift from more inpatient care to 23 


more outpatient care.  It was our hope to begin to 24 
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think about making that happen so that we would 1 


increase our number of patients by almost 100,000.  2 


There were, as a result of that, many staff 3 


reductions and relocations as those two hospitals 4 


changed. 5 


   During that time, we also received our 6 


Joint Commission accreditation for Stroger -- just 7 


before that for Provident -- and for our Ambulatory 8 


Health Care Network. 9 


   Specifically, those things that we 10 


wanted to assume in our budget were things we wanted 11 


to make certain we continue to build on in our 2012 12 


preliminary budget, was to continue to move toward 13 


operation efficiency.  There was a lot of discussion 14 


that you probably heard about making certain that 15 


people were doing their jobs and making certain we 16 


use our human resources as best we could. 17 


   We wanted to continue to invest in 18 


making sure that we could do a better job of taking 19 


care of patients, and also build on a couple of 20 


service lines that we were trying to expand, 21 


particularly those in maternal-child; emergency 22 


room; trauma; and surgical services.  I am happy to 23 


report that on the surgical services side we 24 
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increased the use of our operating rooms from an 1 


average of about fourteen rooms a day to almost now 2 


to nineteen rooms a day. 3 


   In addition to that, we have a new 4 


initiative you will hear a lot more about.  CareLink 5 


was set up and has been operating in a couple of our 6 


units already.  CareLink is a program where we are 7 


asking all patients to identify themselves.  It 8 


helps us to determine, as you will hear more about 9 


CareLink as we go forward, whether we ask many of 10 


the same questions that the organizations who do our 11 


Medicaid enrolment ask to determine whether or not 12 


there may be qualification for some of those 13 


programs. 14 


   We also are looking at our 15 


preprocessing center so we can try and get a lot of 16 


the work done before you come so it makes it easier 17 


for you to get in and be seen. 18 


   Our billing system for physician 19 


billing is up and running at Stroger in the 20 


emergency room.  We have signed many agreements with 21 


managed care companies, looking at the opportunity 22 


to expand our managed care business. 23 


   At Provident Hospital, we have 24 
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increased our outpatient surgical services, and we 1 


are looking to expand more GYN services for women 2 


who need those.  As you know, from our report, we 3 


reported a long backlog for people waiting for 4 


gastrointestinal services, that is for colonoscopy 5 


and upper GI endoscopy, looking at the stomach. 6 


   The expansion of the preprocessing 7 


center concept, as we have outlined at Stroger, is 8 


also there.  We built a partnership with over thirty 9 


FQHCs to increase our referrals, particularly for 10 


those in the subspecialty area.  In addition to 11 


implement our inpatient billing to also sustain our 12 


operational efficiencies. 13 


   At Oak Forest, we have eliminated our 14 


inpatient unit, but continue to have our immediate 15 


care with 24/7 coverages.  We are looking to expand 16 


primary care services and add a series of specialty 17 


care services, particularly in pain management and 18 


urology services.  It is our intention to renovate 19 


the "E" building and transfer all services to the 20 


"E" building. 21 


   As I mentioned earlier, expand our 22 


digital imaging environment so that all of the x-23 


rays that are done, whether they are done at Oak 24 
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Forest or Provident, can all be read at Stroger 1 


Hospital. 2 


   It is our intention to go back and get 3 


a certification of need designation so that we can 4 


open Oak Forest and the ambulatory surgery center 5 


where we can do same-day surgery. 6 


   On the Ambulatory and Community 7 


Healthcare Network, which we call "ACHN", we are 8 


looking to expand our primary care strategy so that 9 


we can make certain that we support managed care 10 


contracting.  Again, our billing and specialty care 11 


services -- again, they are focusing on improving 12 


customer services. 13 


   From the office of the Chief Health 14 


Administrator -- this is the office where the Chief 15 


Executive Officer sits, as well as many of the other 16 


Chief Officers, the Chief Financial Officer, the 17 


Medical Officer, etcetera.  You will see as we go 18 


through our budget, the Office of the Chief Health 19 


Administrator, $95 million of that is really related 20 


to pharmacy.  Another big chunk is information 21 


technology.  We are looking to improve all of these 22 


things, our patient accounts, legal, all of the 23 


things you see highlighted on this slide are part of 24 
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that. 1 


   There has been major system contracts, 2 


including the contract with PricewaterhouseCoopers, 3 


and lately an increase, as you will see in a moment, 4 


for IT support. 5 


   As we look at the operating budget for 6 


each of the units, you will see here the budget in 7 


the first column shows what it was for 2011, 8 


budgeted with a five percent reduction.  The fiscal 9 


year 2012 budget that you see in the next column.  10 


The differences between what we had in 2011 and what 11 


we are asking for in 2012 are located here. 12 


   If you look at Stroger Hospital, there 13 


is a $25 million difference.  A good part of that is 14 


in vacant positions to increase the recruitment for 15 


nurses, specifically nurses and patient care 16 


attendants.  There are a few doctors in that line.  17 


I will get to that in more detail. 18 


   The Office of the Chief Health 19 


Administrator -- what we did this year is we took 20 


the PwC contract and put it as a line item in the 21 


budget.  There is $17 million in that.  Much of the 22 


balance of that is for information technology 23 


upgrades. 24 
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   You can see that the Provident budget 1 


has gone down.  The Ambulatory Healthcare budget has 2 


gone down.  The Oak Forest Health Center has gone 3 


down.  We have a very modest increase in our CORE 4 


Center, where we treat thirty percent of the HIV-5 


affected patients in the City of Chicago. 6 


   There is a total in the fixed charges.  7 


These are the charges that are charged back to the 8 


Health System.  These are things like our employee 9 


benefits, health insurance, and things of that 10 


nature.  That has gone down just a little bit, about 11 


$3.3 million. 12 


   When you factor in the pluses and the 13 


minuses for these areas, you will see there is a 14 


$27.7 million difference. 15 


   The reason we broke out Cermak, the 16 


Juvenile Temporary Detention Center, and the 17 


Department of Public Health is because their 18 


budgets, for the most part, are flat over the year.  19 


You can see overall their budgets have declined by 20 


$1.8 million. 21 


   Where does the money come from?  Let 22 


me just say that eighty percent of the patients who 23 


come to our emergency rooms at Stroger Hospital and 24 
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at Provident Hospital represent themselves.  Nearly 1 


eighty percent of them are people who are uninsured, 2 


without means to pay.  Our blended rate of 3 


nonpayment patients who identify themselves with no 4 


ability to pay is about fifty-six percent. 5 


   The County, with the resources that we 6 


are given, provides over $500 million worth of free 7 


care.  However, that care is really not free.  It is 8 


paid for by the subsidy, in part, that comes from 9 


the County, and offset by some of the things that 10 


you see in the pie chart. 11 


   What we have done is bake into this 12 


our revenue projections for 2012.  We estimate about 13 


$240 million coming from Medicaid.  Our 14 


disproportionate share amount is $140 million.  The 15 


disproportionate share and the BIPA amount is $131 16 


million and is stable from year to year. 17 


   Our Medicare amount that we receive 18 


from patients who are treated by Medicare is $75 19 


million.  We get $17 million between Blue Cross/Blue 20 


Shield and other private payers. 21 


   We have other revenue which is fees 22 


collected from the garage and other areas for a 23 


total of revenue about $610 million. 24 
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   The last slide here represents where 1 


we are.  Our fiscal year 2011 budget had $911 2 


million worth of appropriated expense; $638 million 3 


of revenue; for a difference of $273 million.  That 4 


was the approved budget. 5 


   Our actual budget, however, an 6 


appropriation of $911 million with a revenue 7 


shortfall that you heard much about.  In this slide, 8 


it is about $100 million thus far.  It shows a 9 


difference of $363.8 million. 10 


   In our fiscal year 2012 budget, it 11 


shows an appropriation of $937 million, with 12 


revenues of $610 million, with a difference of 13 


$327.6 million. 14 


   What we are doing right now is 15 


continuing to work with the President's Office to 16 


determine what the level of subsidy from Cook County 17 


will be in order to mitigate this difference because 18 


we are required to submit a balanced budget. 19 


   Director Greenspan, that concludes my 20 


remarks. 21 


  DIRECTOR GREENSPAN:  Thank you, Doctor 22 


Mason. 23 


   We have some speakers who have 24 
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registered in advance.  We would like to have them 1 


present their comments.  We will then be open for 2 


questions. 3 


   Our first speaker. 4 


  SECRETARY SANTANA:  Mr. George Blakemore. 5 


   Just as a reminder, I will remind you 6 


at the end of the three minutes; if you can please 7 


conclude your comments. 8 


   Thank you. 9 


  MR. BLAKEMORE:  My name is George 10 


Blakemore, and I am a concerned citizen. 11 


   I consider myself -- I define myself 12 


as a public servant.  I am not getting paid to be 13 


here.  I use public transportation -- the CTA and 14 


Pace -- to get here because I felt that my presence 15 


was needed, and that I will be able to engage in 16 


this brief three minutes, and to get information 17 


from other speakers. 18 


   This is a sad day in County Government 19 


when the County has a public hearing that is very 20 


important, the Health and Hospitals System.  This 21 


place should be crowded. 22 


   I got here early and I guess Skokie 23 


was the wrong area to have this meeting, with these 24 
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beautiful homes out here.  Probably they don't need 1 


the services out here.  Maybe public relations, or 2 


the e-mail or whatever to get these residents in 3 


this area to participate; even if they don't need 4 


the services, they are citizens, and they are paying 5 


taxes. 6 


   You represent the Board -- one person.  7 


They have seven or eight people on this Board.  All 8 


of them should be present; not one Board member. 9 


   Last year I was out here, and didn't 10 


anyone attend; maybe two or three public speakers 11 


and the budget.  I think we are just dealing with a 12 


process.  You have to give something to the 13 


President for her to start her process with the 14 


County budget.  But all budgets must be 15 


comprehensive.  They must be detailed where people 16 


can see how this money is being spent. 17 


   I am not here to beat up on you, or 18 


beat up on the staff; but facts are facts.  We need 19 


comprehensive healthcare with dignity and respect 20 


here in Cook County.  People are losing their jobs, 21 


the working poor.  Even a lot of the people who are 22 


contractors, or laborers, they need healthcare 23 


because they are being contracted and they are not 24 
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getting this benefit of healthcare.  This is a big 1 


issue here. 2 


   I am going to leave in saying that 3 


when you have eighty percent of the people who come 4 


and use this service and they don't pay for it, some 5 


of these eighty percent pay for it because they are 6 


citizens, too.  They pay taxes.  The only one that 7 


actually gets maybe a free ride -- I will say a free 8 


ride -- I always emphasize this.  The politicians, 9 


both Democrats and Republicans, are silent.  The 10 


black leadership is silent on the negative effect of 11 


illegal citizens on the Health and Hospitals System.  12 


The negative effect. 13 


   Now, you have not seen the need to do 14 


a study to see how much of these funds are being 15 


spent for noncitizens.  If everybody is silent -- I 16 


am not trying to be an elected official -- both 17 


Democrat, Republican, black, white, and all -- you 18 


never hear this until a great impact that happened 19 


in the State of California.  They know about the 20 


negative effect of illegal immigrants on their 21 


hospital system.  Other States know the drain on 22 


this. 23 


   Showing this over here, you show the 24 
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chart, and it is dealing with debit - credit - money 1 


- revenue.  We need these revenues for our citizens 2 


here.  This County is not rich enough.  How 3 


charitable do you want to be to let the influx of 4 


people from all over the world, illegals come into 5 


here and get to this hospital, use this Cook County-6 


Stroger Hospital.  It puts our people at a 7 


disadvantage when you tell me the emergency room is 8 


packed with people seeking services -- 9 


  SECRETARY SANTANA:  Excuse me, Mr. 10 


Blakemore -- 11 


  MR. BLAKEMORE:  In just one minute Mr. 12 


Blakemore is going to be seated -- some of these 13 


people are not citizens.  That is what makes that 14 


line so long.  That is what makes these nurses so 15 


tired.  That is what makes these doctors work 16 


overtime.  It is the negative effect illegals have 17 


on this system. 18 


   Thank you again, and you should 19 


always, when a public speaker comes up, someone from 20 


the public, always be sensitive and caring even if 21 


they extend their three minutes. 22 


   God bless all of you here.  It is a 23 


challenge here.  Our people need comprehensive 24 
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healthcare with dignity and respect, and especially 1 


our people in the black community.  We need 2 


healthcare. 3 


   Thank you again, and have a peaceful 4 


and blessed day. 5 


  SECRETARY SANTANA:  Our next speaker is 6 


Joseph Flanagan. 7 


  MR. FLANAGAN:  Good evening.  My name is 8 


Joseph Flanagan.  I am President of JP Flanagan 9 


Enterprises and Acquirent.  I am Chairman of the 10 


Board of a not-for-profit that Cook County has 11 


supported for many years called "Access to Care". 12 


   I want to thank you for your past 13 


funding and support of what we do, and ask you for 14 


your continued support at the levels that we have 15 


been supported in the past. 16 


   We think the County gets a tremendous 17 


value for the dollars it spends on Access to Care.  18 


We have got administrative costs at five percent.  19 


We have a small staff of ten-and-one-half people.  20 


Today, I manage a network of physicians of about 677 21 


private healthcare physicians, twenty-seven private 22 


labs, radiology and pharmacy vendors.  It is an 23 


incredibly efficient system that has attracted me, 24 
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somebody from the private sector, to invest their 1 


time in working with this private-public 2 


collaboration. 3 


   Today, our patients also participate 4 


as members in paying part of their way.  They pay 5 


five dollars to visit their primary care physician; 6 


five dollars for specimens, lab tests, x-rays.  The 7 


most important thing that we provide them is access 8 


-- besides the wonderful physicians -- is access to 9 


medication.  Everyone gets to go to Walgreen's to 10 


pick up their prescriptions for fifteen, twenty, or 11 


thirty dollars, just like everybody else. 12 


   We can do more.  Today we have got 13 


probably 16,000 unassigned physician slots that we 14 


can serve the uninsured.  We don't have the money to 15 


do that.  The thing that I like most about this 16 


problem is we use private physicians who operate in 17 


all of the different communities, to serve the 18 


uninsured in their communities.  They offer to take 19 


five - ten - twenty-five people in their community 20 


and serve them.  The commute is not a huge burden on 21 


people.  They can easily get access to their 22 


physician.  They have a medical home.  That is 23 


really what they need. 24 
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   We value the private contributions 1 


from our physicians and private donors to be about 2 


$5 million a year.  This is not an insignificant 3 


effort that we have.  We understand that the County 4 


is under tremendous pressure.  We are prepared to do 5 


our part.  I have read five percent there, where we 6 


used to be funded at the $3 million level not long 7 


ago.  The State used to contribute $3 million to our 8 


budget.  We have been zeroed out by them, and we 9 


continue to get decreased by the County. 10 


   If this continues, I don't know how 11 


much longer we will survive, and these people will 12 


be directed right back into these emergency rooms 13 


where we have been trying to keep them out. 14 


   I hope that you consider continuing to 15 


support Access to Care and the good work that we do, 16 


the incredibly efficient way that we do it.  We 17 


promise to do our part to keep everybody in these 18 


private physicians' offices. 19 


   Thank you for your time. 20 


  DIRECTOR GREENSPAN:  Thank you, Mr. 21 


Flanagan. 22 


  SECRETARY SANTANA:  Our next speaker, 23 


Adrienne Alexander. 24 
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  MS. ALEXANDER:  Hi.  My name is Adrienne 1 


Alexander.  I am a policy and legislative specialist 2 


with AFSCME, Council 31.  We represent about one 3 


thousand workers in the Health System.  Of course, 4 


we didn't get a line item budget, so this gives me a 5 


chance to give some commentary on what you have done 6 


so far, and hopefully we will shape how things work 7 


out going forward. 8 


   AFSCME is, of course, concerned about 9 


the PricewaterhouseCoopers contract and how things 10 


play out as their contract comes to an end in June.  11 


We want to make sure that going forward the 12 


assumption isn't that County employees can't do the 13 


work, and that you work with the union to try and 14 


figure out a solution to prepare for how we are 15 


going to handle all of these vacancies that are 16 


going to be put in the budget, and how to handle the 17 


work that Pricewaterhouse is currently augmenting, 18 


and make sure the County staff can do that work. 19 


   We know that is a big portion of the 20 


increase in the Chief Administrator's Office, and we 21 


want to make sure that that doesn't continue. 22 


   Also, it was really concerning Friday 23 


to hear about the Board members talking about how we 24 
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can't cut any more without a serious effect to the 1 


services that the County provides.  We know that we 2 


are still far from meeting President Preckwinkle's 3 


demand for the decrease in the County subsidy.  We 4 


want to make sure that you know that the union is 5 


going to stand with you all in this fight.  We want 6 


to make sure that as the budget is prepared on a 7 


line item basis that there aren't further cuts to 8 


services because we are already working with a bare 9 


bones system. 10 


   Lastly, about the coders.  It is kind 11 


of related to the contracting.  We will have a 12 


letter on Friday that we will give to the Board.  We 13 


just want to make sure that we have some people that 14 


are trained, and we want to make sure more people 15 


can get trained so that those positions can get 16 


filled and that is a revenue-building area.  We want 17 


to make sure that that is done carefully.  We think 18 


that there is more opportunities to get people 19 


trained in those positions. 20 


   Thank you. 21 


  DIRECTOR GREENSPAN:  Thank you, Ms. 22 


Alexander. 23 


  SECRETARY SANTANA:  The final speaker is 24 
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Brenda Russell. 1 


  MS. RUSSELL:  I am not a speaker. 2 


  DIRECTOR GREENSPAN:  Are there any 3 


questions that Doctor Mason can respond to about the 4 


budget? 5 


  MR. KRAMER:  I have a question about the 6 


Pricewaterhouse contract. 7 


  DIRECTOR GREENSPAN:  Please come up to the 8 


microphone so we can get it recorded.  We would have 9 


taken you informally in a T-shirt. 10 


  MR. KRAMER:  My name is Harry Kramer.  I 11 


was just curious what the objectives of the 12 


Pricewaterhouse contract are, since the previous 13 


speaker just mentioned that.  You mentioned a big 14 


item in your budget. 15 


  DR. MASON:  The PricewaterhouseCoopers 16 


contract is one where the Cook County Health and 17 


Hospitals System engaged in a transformation 18 


process.  There are several areas that we have had 19 


traditionally, as you may recall from many of the 20 


newspaper articles, about boxes of bills that had 21 


not been billed and were carted out. 22 


   I must say, just before I answer that 23 


totally, that the County Health and Hospitals System 24 
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was really -- I come out of the private sector as a 1 


private physician in other hospitals.  The level of 2 


billing and the rigor and the ability of the System 3 


to do things that are done in all other hospital 4 


systems -- for example, if you go to a hospital, any 5 


other hospital, you will get a bill.  It will be 6 


detailed down to the aspirin, the Band-Aid, the 7 


bottle of IV fluids, etcetera, etcetera. 8 


   At County, the bill -- I will rely on 9 


Mr. Cookinham, our to-be Interim Chief Financial 10 


Officer, to keep me straight here.  But we never did 11 


line item billing at the County.  As a matter of 12 


fact, the billing at the County was only done 13 


because we were paid a counter rate.  In other 14 


words, we got one flat rate pre-negotiated for 15 


everything.  It didn't matter whether you spent time 16 


in the intensive care unit or not, had heart surgery 17 


or a toenail removed.  It was pretty much one flat 18 


rate on the inpatient side.  We were trying to do 19 


that part. 20 


   The number of patient visits that we 21 


had on the outpatient side, however, because I guess 22 


the thinking was that there was so little to gain 23 


because so many people had no insurance, was not 24 
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done. 1 


   Because there are so many people who 2 


come to the County System, the only way that we can 3 


get them qualified -- what we do now, I should say, 4 


in addition to PricewaterhouseCoopers, we have other 5 


agencies and other contractors that help us 6 


prequalify people for Medicaid.  Chamberlin-Edmonds 7 


is one of those such vendors. 8 


   We are now trying to embark on this 9 


transformation to get us like all of the other 10 


hospitals.  Chamberlin-Edmonds, in a word, has been 11 


brought in to help us move from where we are to 12 


where we should be.  This is improving our revenue 13 


cycle.  It is improving -- trying to improve our 14 


coding.  It is trying to improve all of those things 15 


that are necessary to get us to function like a 16 


modern twentieth century hospital should function. 17 


   In addition, looking at opportunities 18 


to improve efficiencies, both on the doctors' side, 19 


the nurses' side, and all of the other employees.  20 


This is the transformational effort, looking at all 21 


of our systems, from "A" to "Z", in helping us 22 


provide that sort of support from a two-year 23 


contract to help us to do that. 24 
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   The issue that we have had is we have 1 


been having some difficulty, as they have completed 2 


their part of the work, rolling that work off the 3 


people that work in the County.  We have had a lot 4 


of difficulty trying to hire the caliber of people 5 


that we need in order to take a lot of those 6 


positions. 7 


   It is a long-winded answer, but I 8 


wanted to try to be as complete as I could in 9 


answering your question, and I hope that I did. 10 


  MR. KRAMER:  In the twenty-first century to 11 


get to that. 12 


  DR. MASON:  Yes, the twenty-first century.  13 


I would be happy with the twentieth century, at this 14 


point. 15 


  MS. JUNGE:  Hi.  Emilie Junge from the 16 


Doctors Council. 17 


   I just had a question about the part 18 


on preliminary budget assumptions.  You talk about 19 


renovating the "E" building.  Is that capital 20 


improvement funding?  Or does that come out of 21 


operations? 22 


  DR. MASON:  It is capital improvement.  We 23 


have $5 million approved for this year.  There has 24 
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been a selection of an architectural firm.  They 1 


have begun looking at what needs to be done in order 2 


to do the transformation, as we have outlined by the 3 


services that we would like to locate there.  That 4 


process is underway. 5 


  MS. JUNGE:  Also, the digital imaging, the 6 


improvements on that; is that capital improvement 7 


funding? 8 


  DR. MASON:  That is equipment capital.  We 9 


have equipment capital for this year -- how much is 10 


that, John? 11 


  MR. COOKINHAM:  My understanding is that 12 


this is just for the equipment at Oak Forest -- 13 


  DR. MASON:  I'm sorry.  That is Mr. John 14 


Cookinham, the to-be Interim CFO.  Just to be clear, 15 


there is what I want to call "bricks and mortar 16 


capital", and then there is capital equipment for 17 


things like the new x-ray machines, and things of 18 


that nature.  We have funding for both of those this 19 


year. 20 


  MS. JUNGE:  I just want to make sure that 21 


we understand when we are talking about the actual 22 


operational budget, which is where we are in a 23 


disagreement with the County over the cuts, over the 24 
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subsidy, and that we are not separating that out 1 


from the capital improvement funds, right? 2 


  DR. MASON:  Yes.  What I showed today was 3 


our operational budget.  There was no capital 4 


dollars in this slide. 5 


  MS. JUNGE:  Except in the Strategic Plan 6 


slide you talked about the "E" building. 7 


  DR. MASON:  Right. 8 


  MS. JUNGE:  That is just describing the 9 


Strategic Plan. 10 


  DR. MASON:  That's correct. 11 


  MS. JUNGE:  I have never heard before of 12 


this preprocessing center.  Can you just describe 13 


that a little bit? 14 


  DR. MASON:  Maybe I can ask John -- can you 15 


describe it a little bit better for us, please? 16 


  MR. COOKINHAM:  Thank you. 17 


   John Cookinham, Interim CFO. 18 


   The preprocessing center -- most 19 


hospitals, when you have service, will in fact 20 


contact you in advance of the service and try to 21 


determine if you have insurance, get the insurance 22 


verified, schedule your procedure.  If there are 23 


deposits that need to be made, all of those things 24 
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will be done before you are a patient. 1 


   Cook County in the past has not 2 


operated in that fashion.  We have taken a group of 3 


County employees -- they are to become people that 4 


man the preprocessing center.  We will try to 5 


schedule, register, and take care of as much of that 6 


activity prior to service, with the idea that we 7 


hope to identify more insurance, increase the 8 


revenue, improve the service for the patient. 9 


   We have often heard that people can't 10 


depend on appointment times, etcetera.  So this is 11 


all an effort to improve the customer service as 12 


well as improve the revenue end of the system. 13 


  MS. JUNGE:  The reason why I ask that 14 


question is because we are starting to get some 15 


comments from doctors about sort of paperwork 16 


problems -- sending people to Social Security to get 17 


documentation, and people who may be undocumented -- 18 


with all due respect to Mr. Blakemore. 19 


   You know, the whole CareLink thing is 20 


turning into a problem, to the extent that it adds a 21 


lot of red tape to people being able to get 22 


services.  It is interfering with the follow-up 23 


appointments.  It is interfering with work, to the 24 
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extent that people are afraid that if they come in 1 


they are going to have to submit a ton of paperwork, 2 


they are going to be billed, and they are going to 3 


have to pay a lot of money.  It is just a 4 


cautionary.  It is just a cautionary point that I am 5 


making. 6 


   On the Surgical Center, we are 7 


offering our support for that.  If you need anything 8 


to support the COM, we are happy to do. 9 


  DR. MASON:  Thank you very much. 10 


  DIRECTOR GREENSPAN:  Thank you, Ms. Junge. 11 


   If there are any other questions -- if 12 


not, we will be adjourned. 13 
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  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Good evening.  My name 1 


is David Carvalho.  I am the Chairman of the Finance 2 


Committee of the Cook County Health and Hospitals 3 


System. 4 


   Tonight we are having a public hearing 5 


on the proposed fiscal year 2012 budget.  I will be 6 


chairing the meeting. 7 


   Joining me this evening is Doctor 8 


Terry Mason, who is the Interim Chief Executive 9 


Officer for the Cook County Health and Hospitals 10 


System, and Deborah Santana, who is the Secretary to 11 


the System Board. 12 


   The purpose of these hearings is to 13 


receive public comment on the budget, and the 14 


direction the budget is going.  The hearings are all 15 


transcribed by a court reporter, so that all members 16 


of the System Board will benefit from whatever 17 


testimony is provided this evening. 18 


   There will be another hearing tomorrow 19 


at one o'clock at the Cook County Board Room, on the 20 


fifth floor of the Cook County Building.  All are 21 


welcome to attend there as well. 22 


   The schedule thereafter is that the 23 


System Board has a meeting Friday morning at 7:30, 24 
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which will be devoted to topics other than the 1 


budget; although there may be a discussion, with no 2 


action taken, regarding the budget process.  Then 3 


the System Board has a meeting scheduled for next 4 


Wednesday, also at 7:30.  Both of those meetings 5 


will be at the usual meeting site on the second 6 


floor of the Administration Building at the John H. 7 


Stroger campus.  At that meeting, it is the current 8 


expectation that the Board will take action on the 9 


budget. 10 


   As a reminder, the budget then goes to 11 


the Cook County Board, who received a preliminary 12 


version of it today.  It goes to the Cook County 13 


Board, whose Finance Committee will itself consider 14 


that budget.  Under the ordinance creating the 15 


System, it will either accept the budget or reject 16 


it.  If they accept it, it then transmits to the 17 


Cook County Board President for inclusion into her 18 


budget, which will be submitted to the Cook County 19 


Board. 20 


   Then, finally, the Cook County Board 21 


will consider the entire budget as presented by the 22 


President, including the budget submitted by the 23 


Cook County Health and Hospitals System. 24 
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   It is the expressed intent of the Cook 1 


County Board President that the Cook County Board 2 


conclude its consideration of the total Cook County 3 


budget before the fiscal year begins, December 1.  4 


All of these timelines have been designed in order 5 


to make that a theoretical possibility, if that is 6 


the action of the Cook County Board. 7 


   With that background, we have a 8 


presentation on the preliminary budget from the 9 


Interim Chief Executive Officer, Doctor Terry Mason.  10 


I turn the microphone over to Doctor Mason. 11 


  DR. MASON:  Thank you, Director Carvalho. 12 


   What I would like to do is to give you 13 


a little bit of background of how we began the 14 


planning for the 2012 budget. 15 


   As many of you know, we had a planning 16 


session for our Strategic Plan which resulted in 17 


what we call "Strategic Vision 2015".  It is made of 18 


four major parts.  Our mission vision, which we 19 


wanted to keep first and foremost; our five core 20 


goals, which I will talk about in a little bit more 21 


in just a moment; and our strategic initiatives. 22 


   The five core goals that were part of 23 


this Strategic Plan, Vision 2015, are listed here.  24 







5 
 
 
 


 ________________________________________________ 
 
 ANTHONY W. LISANTI - (312) 405-1383 


These were the guiding principles as we went through 1 


our strategic planning process that we wanted to 2 


make sure as best we could that the budget 3 


maintained the activities around these five goals, 4 


which talks about access, cultural competence, our 5 


clinical strengths, staff development, and 6 


leadership. 7 


   Before I get into more of that, we 8 


wanted to take a minute to give you just a very, 9 


very high-level look at some of the accomplishments 10 


for fiscal year 2011; where we really worked hard to 11 


take the three patient accounting systems from 12 


Provident, Oak Forest, and Stroger, and combined 13 


them into one patient accounting system.  That 14 


happened in December, 2010. 15 


   We have moved to a certified release 16 


of the patient management system, which gets us in 17 


line for some of the money that is available through 18 


the Accountable Care Act. 19 


   There are a lot of activities, 20 


particularly with our consultants, around 21 


transforming patient accounting and our revenue 22 


cycle.  As many of you know, we worked very hard to 23 


move our resources from basically an inpatient 24 
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operation to an outpatient operation.  Part of that 1 


required converting Oak Forest Hospital into a 2 


regional outpatient center.  The other is to move 3 


Provident in that direction.  Provident Hospital is 4 


now moving more to a regional outpatient center with 5 


a twenty-five- bed, low-acuity unit. 6 


   We started replacing most of the 7 


radiologic technology throughout the System.  There 8 


were some steep staff reductions and relocations as 9 


a result of what we did at Oak Forest.  That had to 10 


be completed. 11 


   In addition, we were awarded an ACHN 12 


Joint Commission accreditation for our ambulatory 13 


network with Stroger Hospital a little earlier. 14 


   At Stroger Hospital, we continue to do 15 


the things which you will see as a theme that goes 16 


throughout this entire presentation, which talks 17 


about increasing operational efficiency; making sure 18 


we do better; and investing in improving our service 19 


delivery and quality. 20 


   We wanted to make sure that we 21 


continued the work that we started on, trying to 22 


increase the number of people who sought out Stroger 23 


Hospital for obstetrics and gynecology services, and 24 
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continue to build on the strength of our ER/trauma 1 


and surgical services; implementing what is called a 2 


"preprocessing center" for making certain that 3 


people before they come in, that we do some of the 4 


prechecking, so we wouldn't have to take a lot of 5 


time once they get here. 6 


   CareLink is the program that you are 7 


going to see a lot more about.  It is our program 8 


now that will allow us to better qualify people, or 9 


prequalify those patients who may be eligible for 10 


other assistance.  CareLink is also what has already 11 


been implemented in two of our sites.  Stroger 12 


Hospital is going to be the last place that we 13 


implement CareLink.  It will require additional 14 


information for people to verify their employment 15 


status and their income to determine their level of 16 


discounted services. 17 


   Implementing physician billing and 18 


managed care contracts are all part of our billing, 19 


and it will become far more the opportunity that we 20 


have to expand our revenue base. 21 


   At Provident, we are looking to 22 


continue to expand our surgical services.  We have 23 


expanded, and we have more patients being done there 24 
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now as well as GYN services.  Our plan is to add 1 


endoscopy services and expand that preprocessing 2 


center to Provident as well.  We will continue to 3 


build our relationships and partnerships with other 4 


federally-qualified health centers.  And there, in 5 


addition as at Stroger, we are implementing our 6 


physician billing. 7 


   At Oak Forest Hospital, we expanded 8 


our immediate care coverage from sixteen hours to 9 


24/7 coverage, as originally planned.  We expanded 10 


primary care services.  We are adding some 11 


additional specialty services.  Our plan, and we 12 


have already identified an architect and have 13 


started the drawings of the renovation of the "E" 14 


building for all of the services at Oak Forest, 15 


where it will eventually be housed. 16 


   We have already ordered or are in the 17 


process of ordering our new CT scanning.  Our 18 


current CT scanner there is very old.  Our next step 19 


is to move towards getting a certificate of need to 20 


open the ambulatory surgery center at Oak Forest 21 


Hospital. 22 


   In terms of our primary care network, 23 


our ambulatory and community healthcare network, we 24 
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want to make sure that we continue to implement our 1 


strategy for primary care; expanding our specialty 2 


services at Oak Forest and Provident; and, again, 3 


our preprocessing center in improving customer 4 


services. 5 


   In the budget, when Ms. Wykowski gets 6 


here -- I didn't bring a copy; we do have copies and 7 


she has them with her -- you will see, in the Office 8 


of the Chief Health Administrator, one of the bigger 9 


costs in that, almost $95 million is the pharmacy 10 


costs, the cost to cover drugs and employees that 11 


are necessary to distribute those.  Increase the 12 


information technology, particularly those around 13 


the implementation and the preparation of some of 14 


the infrastructure.  We need to do a better job on 15 


patient accounts, the legal, the compliance area, 16 


internal audits -- those things that you see listed 17 


there. 18 


   In addition to the major system 19 


contract, particularly for those of our consultant 20 


who is doing most of our transformation work, and 21 


that is PricewaterhouseCoopers. 22 


   The operating budget for each of the 23 


affiliates are located here.  So for Stroger, you 24 
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see in the first column, the adjusted budget of 1 


fiscal year 2011 was $408 million.  Our preliminary 2 


fiscal year 2012 budget is $433 million.  There is a  3 


difference of $25.5 million, which is the add for 4 


fiscal year 2012.  Most of that -- over half of that 5 


is in new positions or vacancies that we have to 6 


fill, particularly in the nursing area. 7 


   In the Office of the Chief Health 8 


Administrator, you see an increase of $32 million.  9 


Part of that is the PwC contract.  Part of that is 10 


also technology.  Increases for the services that we 11 


are trying to provide as I previously enumerated. 12 


   Provident Hospital you see has gone 13 


down $10.7 million.  ACHN is down $3.1.  Oak Forest 14 


is down $13.8 million.  The CORE Center is almost 15 


stable, a little under $600,000.  The health - fixed 16 


charges -- these are charges that the County charges 17 


back to the Health System for our health insurance 18 


benefits, or whatever, for the employees. 19 


   So overall, at this point -- we will 20 


put the other $62 million in -- it is a subtotal a 21 


little shy of $850 million.  Our fiscal year budget 22 


for 2012 is about $27 million over that, mostly 23 


accounted for in the things that I have already 24 
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discussed. 1 


   Cermak, the Juvenile Detention Center, 2 


and the Department of Public Health -- in the 3 


aggregate, they have gone down $1.8 million for the 4 


fiscal year 2012. 5 


   In terms of revenue -- our revenue 6 


projections for fiscal year 2012 is $610 million.  7 


It is broken out into the following pieces in the 8 


pie.  $239 million of Medicaid is by far our largest 9 


payer.  $140 million and in addition $131 million 10 


are federally-funded programs.  That comes to us 11 


because of our being a disproportionate share 12 


hospital, or other arrangements.  $75 million we 13 


collect from Medicare. 14 


   We collect just over $17 million from 15 


Blue Cross/Blue Shield and other commercial 16 


carriers.  $6 million in miscellaneous fees that we 17 


charge at the cafeteria and at the parking garage.  18 


That makes up our total of $610 million. 19 


   If we summarize that -- and this is 20 


our last slide -- in the fiscal year 2011 approved 21 


budget, there was appropriated $911.8 million.  22 


Again, $638 million in revenue.  That left a 23 


difference of $273.8 million.  This difference is 24 
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where the County provides dollars for the subsidy. 1 


   For the actual budget in 2011, because 2 


we did not make our revenue target, the actual 3 


County subsidy will be more in the area of perhaps 4 


around $363 million. 5 


   The preliminary 2012 budget is now at 6 


$937 million against the revenue projected of $610, 7 


which leaves a difference of $327.6 million.  That 8 


is the difference that we are in current 9 


negotiations with the County, with the President's 10 


Office, for how we will bridge that gap. 11 


   I see now that Ms. Wykowski has made 12 


it.  There are some copies of the budget that we 13 


will make available.  Each of those budgets 14 


represents a summary by each of the operating units 15 


that you see identified here.  These are the 16 


preliminary budgets that we promised that we would 17 


have tonight.  We did not have them last night.  We 18 


have them today.  This is the preliminary budget 19 


that was submitted to the Cook County Board today. 20 


   With that, I will turn it back over 21 


now to Mr. Carvalho. 22 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Thank you, Doctor 23 


Mason. 24 
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   I notice that we have a number of 1 


people registered.  We also have a number of people 2 


from the Finance Department. 3 


   I should tell you -- I am telling this 4 


for the staff of the System, who will probably want 5 


to listen. 6 


   One of the purposes of these public 7 


hearings is to get information from the public.  The 8 


other purpose is, frankly, the Board has only seen 9 


this budget in gross figures.  The first 10 


distribution of the detail -- and the detail is 11 


actually a summary of the detail -- was today.  The 12 


first and last time that the Board will be 13 


discussing the budget is next Wednesday. 14 


   So I apologize for not giving you a 15 


heads up on this.  I intend to ask questions tonight 16 


about the line items detailed in the summary, unless 17 


I find that you actually aren't prepared for that; 18 


in which case, that will be pointless.  But if not 19 


tonight, then tomorrow at the one o'clock meeting, 20 


and perhaps at both, if we don't chew up too much 21 


time. 22 


   If you recall, in the past when we 23 


adopted a budget, we adopted it without going into a 24 
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lot of public explanation of the detail.  I don't 1 


think that serves us well.  I do intend to do that 2 


after going through the public speakers.  If there 3 


is anything you need to do to be ready for that, I 4 


wanted to give you a heads up. 5 


   We currently have two persons signed 6 


up as public speakers, but if anyone else wishes to 7 


sign up, you may do so. 8 


   The first person signed up is Mr. 9 


George Blakemore.  Each speaker has a very loosely 10 


construed three minutes. 11 


  MR. BLAKEMORE:  Thank you for letting me 12 


know that "loosely construed three minutes". 13 


   My name is George Blakemore.  I define 14 


myself as a public servant, and as a concerned 15 


citizen, and as an activist.  I am from the black 16 


activist community.  We are mandated to try to make 17 


our community a better community, and for government 18 


to serve our community, and we are willing to give 19 


back. 20 


   As I have been a member of the 21 


activist community, I constantly go to various 22 


meetings.  When I was younger, I would get on the 23 


picket line and holler and shout and jump.  Now I am 24 
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older, and I go to all of the City, County, and 1 


other agencies -- the Water Reclamation -- and I 2 


find something very interesting that all of these 3 


various government agencies are interconnected.  If 4 


I go to the Police Board meetings -- they say, well, 5 


you were at the Cook County Health and Hospitals 6 


meeting.  What are you talking about at the Police 7 


Board meetings? 8 


   People get shot, maimed, they don't 9 


have any money.  So they come to this Health and 10 


Hospitals System for service.  So it is all 11 


interconnected. 12 


   I bring a broad picture.  I see the 13 


Machine, the political machine, how they work.  One 14 


leaves one office, from one City government, and 15 


they get recycled to another office.  So I have a 16 


good picture. 17 


   I am just going to leave one 18 


suggestion, which I did observe -- tickets at the 19 


Stroger Hospital.  You have a police force there who 20 


are capable of getting revenue for you, to ticket 21 


people who are in violation on County property when 22 


they come around.  There is some kind of an 23 


arrangement that the County has with Mayor Daley and 24 
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the Machine.  They are all interactive.  Everybody 1 


who is ticketed at the County, the City gets that 2 


revenue.  It is not, I am sure, millions of dollars, 3 


but it is the idea how you are using County police 4 


staff to ticket people, poor people that is coming 5 


in to get service, and the City of Chicago is 6 


getting the revenue. 7 


   I challenge you -- I spoke about this 8 


before and I was ignored.  This is old crazy George 9 


Blakemore again, a public servant.  We have a 10 


speaker -- here comes Mr. Blakemore -- blah, blah, 11 


blah -- here he comes again.  Mr. Blakemore comes 12 


with wisdom, understanding, and knowledge.  Why did 13 


you ignore me when I brought this to your attention? 14 


   You were supposed to say -- thank you, 15 


Mr. Blakemore -- and go to your police force, tell 16 


them that you have an administrative -- everything 17 


set up right with the County.  If somebody wants to 18 


challenge that ticket, you have got that set up.  So 19 


why would you give that revenue to the City and not 20 


keep that revenue for your System that you need this 21 


money? 22 


   These are little small things that 23 


citizens come up with when they speak out and give 24 
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you suggestions.  Then you ignore them.  That shows 1 


that there is something inherently wrong. 2 


   We want an independent system -- 3 


whoever set it up that Mayor Daley can get money 4 


from the County out there -- because it is the 5 


Machine.  The Democrats, all of them is 6 


interconnected, the City, the County, the State down 7 


in Springfield, the Democratic Machine, jobs, 8 


unions, the whole scenario of it; it is all 9 


interconnected.  So let's stop perpetrating that you 10 


are independent, the Health and Hospitals System. 11 


   I am going to leave now, because you 12 


are spending money here -- two public speakers for 13 


these men to work over here getting paid, for your 14 


staff to come out here.  What you are doing you say 15 


is a process; we are forced to have these public 16 


hearings, and the public was involved.  You wasted 17 


money last night.  You are wasting money tonight.  18 


Perhaps maybe even tomorrow. 19 


   You have to rethink.  The people are 20 


watching you, and Mr. Ayres and all of these 21 


contracts and all of this money.  Then you say you 22 


don't have enough money.  Maybe you don't, but there 23 


is still corruption here.  There is still racism 24 
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here.  There is still incompetence here in this 1 


Health and Hospitals System. 2 


   You asked me, like I spoke earlier 3 


today, was it better independent or was it better 4 


under County control.  I say neither one of them are 5 


functional.  When the elected officials had it, they 6 


used it.  Now this so-called Independent Board, in 7 


the bed with them, they are using it.  So it has to 8 


stop.  Somewhere it has to stop. 9 


   This is why the public don't come out 10 


and get involved, because they say that there is no 11 


need to get involved; that the system is broken.  So 12 


fix it -- fix it.  You are mandated to fix a broken 13 


system, a broken health and hospitals system. 14 


   It just didn't start with you - you - 15 


you - you.  We are responsible -- the citizens who 16 


continue to vote for these political hacks who are 17 


working this system. 18 


   So, again, I will try to be there 19 


tomorrow to come up with my little three minutes, to 20 


practice my little public speaking or whatever I am 21 


doing here.  I have to challenge myself -- why do 22 


you keep going to these meetings, Mr. Blakemore?  23 


George, what is going on in your head?  So maybe 24 
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tomorrow, if something is going on in my head at one 1 


o'clock, I will be there to speak on the issues and 2 


hopefully that you will listen. 3 


   Thank you all, and all of you have a 4 


peaceful and blessed day. 5 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Mr. Blakemore, do you 6 


know who Emily Ritella is? 7 


  MR. BLAKEMORE:  No. 8 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Okay.  Never mind. 9 


   Actually, I did listen to what you 10 


said about parking.  We actually have had 11 


discussions about that, and I am informed that we 12 


may actually have a change coming. 13 


  MR. BLAKEMORE:  Why would you wait a year 14 


to interact with me?  You have been seeing me at 15 


these public meetings.  Why didn't you say, "Mr. 16 


Blakemore, we have been working on that problem", 17 


and perhaps I could have spoke on another issue.  I 18 


get tired of speaking.  I will say -- let me not 19 


come in and talk about illegal immigrants today 20 


using the Health and Hospitals System.  Let me find 21 


a new topic. 22 


   I brought up this one.  If I had known 23 


that this one was being addressed, I could have 24 
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brought up another one. 1 


   Thank you again for looking into that 2 


matter.  We appreciate you doing this, too. 3 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  The answer is because I 4 


found out five minutes ago is why I didn't tell you 5 


beforehand.  Second, you mentioned that you were 6 


going to leave after you spoke, and I was going to 7 


encourage you to stay. 8 


  MR. BLAKEMORE:  I didn't say I was going to 9 


leave here.  I was saying I always stick around to 10 


hear what the public says.  Then I want to thank you 11 


for this budget.  It is more comprehensive than last 12 


night.  It is more comprehensive than last year.  13 


Last year you didn't have nothing going on but a 14 


piece of paper.  Last night it was a piece of paper.  15 


Now I see you have a lot of line items and 16 


everything that should keep me busy, if I would go 17 


through this, the salaries and who is getting paid 18 


and all of this. 19 


   Thank you again. 20 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  And for everyone's 21 


information, the information that we handed out 22 


tonight is online or will be online once Ms. Santana 23 


gets back to the office in the morning -- it is on 24 
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now?  That's great.  It is on now and available to 1 


the public as well. 2 


   We are having these hearings, 3 


although, as you say, there are not a lot of members 4 


of the public and it was a compressed time frame.  5 


Frankly, I just felt as a matter of principal you 6 


always have hearings on the budget.  They are not 7 


mandated, but we are doing them because I just felt 8 


it was important. 9 


   Doctor Mason has one more comment. 10 


  DR. MASON:  I just wanted to make a 11 


comment. 12 


   I want to stress that this budget is 13 


sort of a work in progress.  We are still working 14 


with the President's Office.  We are looking very 15 


hard to try and make it as absolutely as lean as 16 


possible, but as safe as we can make it.  Where 17 


there may be some minor discrepancies in some of the 18 


numbers, it is because this is hot off the press.  19 


It represents the latest and greatest, in terms of 20 


what we have done with the budget. 21 


   I would suspect that, as we continue 22 


this process, that there may be some additional 23 


changes which we will post as soon as they are 24 
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available. 1 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Dovetailing with that 2 


and my comments earlier, the reason that this is a 3 


work in progress, but we are nonetheless moving 4 


forward on this time frame and holding the public 5 


hearings on this preliminary draft, was we wanted to 6 


do everything we could to facilitate the County 7 


completing their budget process before the fiscal 8 


year begins -- not only because they want to -- and 9 


that is a pretty good reason -- but also because it 10 


benefits us. 11 


   We have found over the years that when 12 


the budget isn't finally adopted until February 27, 13 


we are three months into the fiscal year and that is 14 


far beyond the ability to start new things for the 15 


fiscal year and take actions that the budget 16 


contemplates.  We are not cooperating with the 17 


County Board simply and only to be cooperative, but 18 


also because it is in our self-interest to do so. 19 


   Better to get started with something 20 


that is preliminary than wait until it is as final 21 


as it could be and throw the whole process out of 22 


sync.  That was the philosophy here.  There was no 23 


intent to try to be confusing.  It is an intent to 24 
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try to get it out there as soon as possible, but 1 


still allow the timelines to be met. 2 


   Our second registered speaker is 3 


Doctor Steven Blaine, who I guess I have to 4 


apologize that we don't know each other because we 5 


should.  In the interest of disclosure, I am one of 6 


the County's representatives to the Board of the 7 


Suburban Primary Healthcare Council.  It is a 8 


nonprofit organization that the County has supported 9 


since its inception, and the County was one of its 10 


founding members. 11 


   There are several Board members who 12 


are designated by the County.  I am one of them.  I 13 


haven't been as participatory lately as I would like 14 


to be. 15 


   Doctor Blaine. 16 


  DR. BLAINE:  I am the newest Board member 17 


of the Access to Care program. 18 


   My name is Steven Blaine.  I am here 19 


today to ask you to include the Access to Care 20 


program, which is operated by the Suburban Primary 21 


Healthcare Council, in the 2012 proposed Cook County 22 


budget. 23 


   Access to Care has always been a good 24 
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partner with Cook County in providing affordable 1 


primary healthcare to the medically indigent in 2 


suburban Cook County.  Access to Care operates 3 


completely in the private system of medicine.  4 


Private physicians see Access to Care patients in 5 


their own offices.  Commercial laboratories with 6 


courier services and local drawing stations provide 7 


the laboratory tests necessary for diagnosis.  Local 8 


hospital radiology departments provide affordable 9 


routine x-rays.  Walgreen's pharmacy provides 10 


prescription medication for a patient copayment of 11 


fifteen, thirty, or forty dollars. 12 


   Access to Care pays the remainder of 13 


the bills based on the contracts we have 14 


established.  We do this with mostly public funds, 15 


including the County, the State, townships, and 16 


municipalities.  Public funds go further where used 17 


by a charity that can obtain discounts that are 18 


unavailable to the public entity itself.  Access to 19 


Care pays it participating physicians only sixty-20 


eight dollars per person per year, and yet we cannot 21 


afford to fill all the patient slots that the 22 


physicians have voluntarily committed to. 23 


   Where else could an indigent patient 24 
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see a private physician and have an affordable 1 


medical home in the private sector? 2 


   Cook County has made a commitment to 3 


provide healthcare to its citizens.  Healthcare is 4 


essential if people are going to be able to work and 5 


provide for their families.  Access to Care is a 6 


part of that provision of care in parts of Cook 7 


County where public transportation is poor and 8 


distances are great.  We appreciate being partners 9 


with Cook County in this very important work. 10 


   I personally would like to thank the 11 


Board for your continued support. 12 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Thank you, Doctor 13 


Blaine. 14 


   Doctor Mason, what was the budgeted 15 


amount for Access to Care last year?  And what is in 16 


the proposed budget? 17 


  DR. MASON:  It was $1 million originally.  18 


One million dollars was added during the budget 19 


negotiation session.  This year's budget 20 


appropriation is at $1 million. 21 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  My recollection was 22 


that it has been higher in the past.  I believe it 23 


was $2 million for quite a number of years.  It was 24 
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$1 million sixteen years ago.  We have actually 1 


brought it back to what it was sixteen years ago. 2 


   Since I am a representative to their 3 


Board, not their representative to this Board, I 4 


don't think I have a conflict of interest in saying 5 


that I think one of the things that we ought to be 6 


thinking about as we put the budget together is 7 


whether the mode of provision of services to Access 8 


to Care, which is our non-brick-and-mortar way of 9 


providing primary care in the suburbs as opposed to 10 


the clinics that we run ourselves.  It is something 11 


we should be thinking about, whether there is an 12 


opportunity to restore it to what it was. 13 


   We did not take a fifty percent cut at 14 


the Bureau, but we did provide the fifty percent cut 15 


to the program.  Maybe that needs to be revisited, 16 


but that is my opinion.  You don't need to respond 17 


to it here. 18 


  DR. BLAINE:  Thank you very much. 19 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Thank you, Doctor 20 


Blaine. 21 


   Those were the only speakers who 22 


registered.  If there are other people who arrived 23 


later, we certainly are not going to stand on 24 
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formality.  If there is anybody else who would like 1 


to speak to the Board -- speak at the hearing.  I am 2 


the only one here on the Board, but it is a public 3 


hearing that I am chairing. 4 


  MR. SIMPSON:  Good evening, Mr. Carvalho, 5 


Doctor Mason, and distinguished guests in the 6 


audience.  My name is Leonard Simpson.  I am with 7 


the Service Employees International Union, Local 73. 8 


   Our organization appreciates the fact 9 


that the Board of Directors has decided, for the 10 


first time that I know of, to come out with a 11 


preliminary budget at an early stage in the game, if 12 


you will. 13 


   However, while it is a work in 14 


progress, my organization -- and I am quite sure as 15 


well as other unions -- are concerned with the still 16 


continued use of the inordinate amount of registry 17 


services that are being utilized at Stroger, Cermak, 18 


and in other hospitals; especially when you have 19 


employees that are still out on the street ready and 20 


waiting to be recalled. 21 


   Our organization will continue to work 22 


with the Health and Hospitals System to figure out 23 


ways to reduce registry services.  We look forward 24 
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to our continued efforts in working with you. 1 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Thank you, Mr. Simpson. 2 


   I concur.  We need to figure out ways.  3 


I know the process involving Oak Forest, where you 4 


have needs in one part of the system, and you don't 5 


have needs elsewhere.  So you have to go through the 6 


whole formalized layoff process here, even though 7 


you want to hire people over there.  If there is 8 


some way we could figure out to do that more 9 


efficiently, that would certainly benefit everybody. 10 


   I think everybody agrees that we want 11 


registry to be a last report, and not anywhere near 12 


a first resort. 13 


   I have a personal experience with a 14 


registry nurse during the delivery of my first 15 


child.  I can tell you outside of the court reporter 16 


that it was not a good experience.  I harbor a bias 17 


against using registry as well, albeit from one 18 


experience.  I think everybody agrees that we want 19 


to minimize registry as much as we can. 20 


   Is there anyone else who would like to 21 


speak at the hearing? 22 


   Ms. Bomar-Cole. 23 


  MS. COLE:  I actually do not have a 24 
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question.  I am Shirley Bomar-Cole.  We brought some 1 


students here tonight from Governors State 2 


University to see government at work.  There are 3 


seven students out here.  I just wanted to recognize 4 


them for coming, and let the Board here know that 5 


you did have students in the area.  They are out 6 


here and in the health administration program.  They 7 


are in a learning mode, and they wanted to see you 8 


at work. 9 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Thank you.  Welcome to 10 


the students.  I, for a number of years, served on 11 


the Foundation Board for Governors State that raised 12 


money for scholarships for students.  I hope some of 13 


you are beneficiaries of that. 14 


   I am a longtime resident of the south 15 


suburbs, and a supporter of Governors State and the 16 


programs there.  My wife does, too.  You may see her 17 


in connection with the health management program.  18 


She sometimes speaks out there.  I am glad to see 19 


you, and I will tell her that some of the students 20 


were here as well. 21 


   Anyone else? 22 


   Doctor Mason has something he wants to 23 


explain.  Then I do have a few questions. 24 
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  DR. MASON:  Thank you, Director Carvalho. 1 


   What I wanted to do is I have asked 2 


the Interim CFO, Mr. John Cookinham, because I 3 


wanted to -- as I looked at this summary page, the 4 


first page is one of three.  I want to call 5 


attention to this summary of the Bureau operating 6 


total.  For the request, it is $827,297,382.  That 7 


is a different number than I what I projected.  I 8 


just wanted to go on record.  I am going to ask them 9 


to talk about that for a moment, so we could have on 10 


record that discrepancy as we go through the summary 11 


page and make certain that all of the information is 12 


there. 13 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  If you look at the 14 


handout that you have, you will notice the first 15 


three pages, and since we used double-sided, it is 16 


actually the first two pieces of paper.  There is 17 


three pages, one, two, and three.  If you look on 18 


the third of those three, the second piece of paper, 19 


you will see down under the request column, which is 20 


the third column from the right, where there is 21 


three boldfaced numbers.  One is $827,297,382.  Then 22 


there is the capital items, and then a grand total. 23 


   Doctor Mason was pointing out that 24 
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that request total, $827,297,382, is not the same 1 


one that was on the slide.  Mr. Cookinham is going 2 


to explain the discrepancy. 3 


  MR. COOKINHAM:  I am John Cookinham, 4 


Interim CFO. 5 


   When you look at the double-sided 6 


piece of paper that was handed out tonight, if you 7 


look on the bottom of page two, over in the 8 


preliminary budget column, it says "appropriation".  9 


You will see the 937 number that is there.  If you 10 


go up above that, you will see "Strategic Plan, 11 


Vision 2015, year two".  You can also see that 12 


number broken down into its components.  We just 13 


looked at the document that you got for each one of 14 


the business units.  The individual numbers on this 15 


page match the detailed document. 16 


   The summary document is a database, 17 


and, for some reason or another, the totals did not 18 


accumulate.  We haven't figured out exactly why the 19 


totals didn't accumulate.  But you have the 20 


individual data that makes up the $937 million that 21 


is on this document. 22 


   In each case, you can find that the 23 


Stroger Hospital total is very close to the number 24 
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that is on this document. 1 


   I will just tell you that we will 2 


figure out what is wrong with the summary document, 3 


and make sure that that gets corrected.  But, for 4 


your use tonight, it appears that the detail of each 5 


one of the funds is correct.  It is just when we 6 


roll the whole thing up there is a problem. 7 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Are the fixed charges 8 


not included? 9 


  MR. COOKINHAM:  That looks like the number, 10 


but I am not positive about that. 11 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  I will repeat it to see 12 


if I understand it, and maybe my repetition will 13 


help others as well. 14 


   The first three pages are the summary, 15 


which is the summation of everything that is after 16 


it, all of the business units.  If I understand it 17 


properly, after the first three pages, where you 18 


have the detail on each of the departments -- like 19 


the Cermak Health Services or the JTDC -- the detail 20 


for each of the departments you believe is correct, 21 


and it corresponds to the chart on the PowerPoint 22 


presentation.  But the first three pages, which 23 


would just simply be the addition of all of those 24 
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underlying pages, has a discrepancy in it.  We 1 


should focus on the detail; the summary may not be a 2 


correct summation.  It looks like the discrepancy is 3 


about in the nature of the -- 4 


  MR. COOKINHAM:  I believe you are correct.  5 


I think what is missing is the fixed charges.  But, 6 


yes, the detail for the fixed charges, you have that 7 


in the last page of the document.  You know what is 8 


in the fixed charges.  We are just saying that it is 9 


not in the total document.  I don't see a line for 10 


$104 million. 11 


  DR. MASON:  That's it.  That is what it 12 


was. 13 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  So there is no line for 14 


fixed charges, but it is there. 15 


   One thing this exercise proves useful 16 


was to draw my attention -- and hopefully your 17 


attention -- to the fact that on that page three of 18 


the front two pages, the one we were focused on in 19 


boldface, where the requested total was $827 20 


million.  Underneath there, there is a capital items 21 


line of $27 million.  I know Chairman Batts has 22 


asked me to highlight the fact that because it was 23 


kind of obscured last year, was while the County 24 
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made budget capital and operating dollars 1 


independently, as a system we don't spend them 2 


independently.  We assume for both that the other 3 


will be there. 4 


   What I mean by that is if the capital 5 


budget assumes you are going to buy some equipment, 6 


and the operating budget assumes you are going to 7 


use the equipment to provide services, you can't 8 


have one without the other.  But the County budgets 9 


them on a different timeline at a different page.  10 


This past year part of our problems were created by 11 


that being out of sync. 12 


   I think Chairman Batts wanted to make 13 


sure that we highlighted all of the capital dollars 14 


that we are assuming is in the budget, because to 15 


use for an example Mr. Simpson -- none of your 16 


people are paid out of the capital line.  But if 17 


that stuff is not there, therefore we can't do 18 


physician billing, therefore we are off on our 19 


revenues by $50 million, it matters. 20 


   You care about all of these lines, not 21 


just the personnel lines, as do we. 22 


   Is this the capital line we should be 23 


highlighting?  Or is there even more capital off 24 
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this table that we need to be aware of as having 1 


been assumed as part of this budget? 2 


  MR. COOKINHAM:  I believe there are capital 3 


funds that have not been expended from 2009 and 2010 4 


that would be potentially spent in this year.  So 5 


the capital to be spent may be greater than that $27 6 


million. 7 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  I guess, out of my 8 


ignorance, what I wanted to make clear was that 9 


these $27 million of capital, the source of these is 10 


the County capital funds, not our own capital lease 11 


program? 12 


  MR. MORALES:  Correct. 13 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  We are going to be 14 


obtaining some capital items under our capital 15 


lease, the cost of which is expensed in here.  That 16 


is why it is an operating lease.  It is called that, 17 


but in addition to that we have identified $27 18 


million from this year's capital that we are 19 


requesting on top of whatever is unspent from prior 20 


years. 21 


  MR. COOKINHAM:  Right. 22 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  So in any conversations 23 


about this budget with the Commissioners and the 24 
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President's Office, we need to make sure that the 1 


budget assumes our access to $27 million of capital, 2 


both for the provision of services, but also for 3 


accomplishing what we need to accomplish on the 4 


revenue side.  That is great. 5 


   I will ask a couple of questions with 6 


respect to the summary tables, just to get a flavor.  7 


These are kind of high-level questions.  I am not 8 


going to be asking what is going on in unit 9 


seventeen on the third floor, or anything like that. 10 


   Last year's budget I asked a question 11 


about the special earnings, which had all sorts of a 12 


ripple effect throughout the year.  We don't have 13 


anything labeled "special earnings".  Has that been 14 


recategorized or relabeled?  What became of special 15 


earnings? 16 


  MR. COOKINHAM:  It is included in 17 


differential pay when it is rolled up. 18 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  When you do the 19 


individual detail, is it also combined with 20 


differential pay? 21 


  MR. COOKINHAM:  It appears to be, because I 22 


know they use -- Provident, which I am more familiar 23 


with, does use some special pay.  It is reported in 24 
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these documents under "differential". 1 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Is there any reason to 2 


roll it up?  So I don't ask the question?  Why did 3 


we roll it up? 4 


  MR. COOKINHAM:  I think the differential 5 


pay is a term that covers not just shift 6 


differential, but when we pay for some extra rate of 7 


compensation, that is included in that differential 8 


pay line.  It is somewhat confusing in the sense 9 


that the traditional kind of thought about 10 


differential pay is that of a second and third shift 11 


pay, when, in fact, it may be for out-of-class or 12 


other types of compensation. 13 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  I will probably follow 14 


up.  I think that is enough for now.  I want to 15 


follow up on this and be reminded of the changes 16 


that we put in place operationally with respect to 17 


some of the things we found were being spent out of 18 


this line that we would prefer not to see spent. 19 


   The other similarly labeled lines.  We 20 


have got a premium pay line.  A differential pay 21 


line.  A medical practitioners' required line.  And 22 


a per diem employee line.  Can you describe what the 23 


difference between those similarly-titled lines are? 24 
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  MR. COOKINHAM:  Overtime, and 20-21, which 1 


is premium pay.  Premium pay ends up with the stuff 2 


that is associated with the collective bargaining 3 


agreements.  But the two are normally reported 4 


together. 5 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  How does premium pay 6 


differ from differential pay? 7 


  MR. COOKINHAM:  The definition says -- the 8 


amounts paid to employees in addition to base 9 


salary, or a portion of the base salary, for a 10 


particular component of their position as provided 11 


for in the collective bargaining agreements. 12 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Which one? 13 


  MR. COOKINHAM:  That is premium pay. 14 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  That is premium pay? 15 


  MR. COOKINHAM:  Yes. 16 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  What is differential 17 


pay -- I will channel Commissioner Hansen.  You can 18 


get me these answers later, but I do have that 19 


question on what differential pay is, and how it 20 


differs from premium pay. 21 


  MR. COOKINHAM:  The differential pay 22 


definition is in here as well.  "It is additional 23 


amounts paid to employees that is provided by policy 24 
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or union agreements for specific reasons related to 1 


a position to which they were appointed and which 2 


are not part of their base wage or salary." 3 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  I apologize.  I don't 4 


have what you are reading from.  I don't have it. 5 


   Then there is a line -- allowance per 6 


collective bargaining agreements.  Is that different 7 


from premium pay or differential pay?  Maybe I 8 


should just look at the definitions. 9 


  MR. COOKINHAM:  "Payments of allowance as 10 


authorized by policy or union agreements.  These 11 


costs are typically for uniforms, personal support 12 


programs, and other similarly negotiated 13 


obligations." 14 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Thank you.  The 15 


communications line has gone from $100,000 to $2 16 


million.  Can you explain that?  I am just going 17 


down the page. 18 


  MR. COOKINHAM:  I can't give you an answer 19 


off the top of my head on that. 20 


  DR. MASON:  Part of that -- this is 21 


represented -- it was the customer service training 22 


that was a contract awarded to the Studor Group. 23 


That was for employee training - customer service. 24 







40 
 
 
 


 ________________________________________________ 
 
 ANTHONY W. LISANTI - (312) 405-1383 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  As part of the 1 


Strategic Plan, we have highlighted how customer 2 


service has to be -- we can fully staff and keep a 3 


very shiny building, but if everybody has health 4 


insurance and can go anywhere, we want to make sure 5 


they want to come to our services.  After 2014, we 6 


are not going to be doing so well. 7 


   Delivery services has also jumped 8 


quite a bit.  Do you know what occasioned that?  I 9 


should say beforehand, since we didn't have a chance 10 


to talk about this beforehand -- part of the reason 11 


for doing this is that I can guarantee you that at 12 


the County Board you are going to get the same 13 


questions, so it is better to try them out in front 14 


of a more friendlier audience. 15 


   Delivery services go up triple. 16 


  MR. COOKINHAM:  The ACHN network now uses 17 


the Stroger laboratory.  John has suggested that 18 


that is, in fact, the cost of transporting the 19 


specimens back to Stroger that we didn't incur 20 


before. 21 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  So theoretically there 22 


is an offset somewhere else; however, we deliver 23 


them to wherever they used to go? 24 
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  MR. COOKINHAM:  We wouldn't be using as 1 


much in terms of reference laboratory services. 2 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  It would be good to be 3 


able to show somewhere in here the reference lab 4 


number has gone down, assuming that that is the 5 


tradeoff. 6 


   I think one of the things that we 7 


should be prepared for is basically every number 8 


where there is a differential of significance, that 9 


is going to lead to a question either at our Board 10 


or downtown.  For example, the next page, 272 -- the 11 


medical consultation services.  It shows a pretty 12 


big bump up.  Especially the current expense is 13 


fifteen.  The budget was twenty-five.  We are 14 


requesting thirty-one.  There has got to be a story 15 


there. 16 


  DR. MASON:  I just want to point out that 17 


the current expense column is as of July 31. 18 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  So that is just over 19 


half a fiscal year? 20 


  DR. MASON:  That is just half of the fiscal 21 


year. 22 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  We expect that to go up 23 


about twenty-five percent this year.  What does that 24 
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pay for?  What does that line pay for? 1 


  DR. MASON:  Which line are we talking 2 


about? 3 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Medical consultation 4 


services. 5 


  MR. COOKINHAM:  Those contracts, I think, 6 


are for the residency services that we get from 7 


Rush, U of I, and the other institutions -- Loyola. 8 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Why did they go up 9 


twenty-five percent?  Is that part of Northwestern, 10 


the change with Northwestern, the OB/GYN? 11 


  DR. MASON:  Yes; and, as you know, Director 12 


Carvalho, we are phasing out our OB/GYN residency.  13 


As we phase out, every year we have added residents 14 


from Northwestern. 15 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Again, where anything 16 


goes up, something else is going down.  We should 17 


probably anticipate having that information for the 18 


Board, to save you time at the Board meeting, let 19 


alone the County Board. 20 


   If you don't know this off the top, 21 


again, let's just get the information for one of our 22 


next meetings, which, of course, means tomorrow or 23 


next Wednesday -- what the number of FTE physicians 24 
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does this entire budget represent?  I'm sure you 1 


don't have that off the top.  That is a number we 2 


want to have handy as the budget moves forward. 3 


   Then, although they are not a lot of 4 


dollars, and, therefore, they don't get talked a lot 5 


about -- what does the lead poisoning prevention 6 


fund pay for?  It is about $1.5 million.  The 7 


request is about half of last year.  What is that 8 


paying for? 9 


  MR. COOKINHAM:  It is lead abatement.  It 10 


is a limited amount of money.  When we consume the 11 


remaining money, then that is going to be an 12 


additional burden on the Health System. 13 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  I am probably asking 14 


the finance guy the question, and I should be asking 15 


the operations guy.  What does the money pay for?  16 


Do you know what it does?  Doctor Mason? 17 


  MR. COOKINHAM:  Other than the title on the 18 


fund. 19 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Why don't we get the 20 


information on what it does so we can have that 21 


going forward?  Then a similar question -- it will 22 


probably be good to know how many patients are 23 


served by the TB Sanitarium District.  We have a $5 24 
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million request.  Last year's request was $7 1 


million. 2 


   I assume this is all handled on an 3 


outpatient basis.  It will be good to know what we 4 


are spending $5 million on, presumably just in the 5 


suburbs; is that right?  The TB? 6 


  DR. MASON:  Yes, although there is activity 7 


now to combine the City and the County.  Most of the 8 


patients now are being treated at County. 9 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  I guess the question 10 


would be are these dollars being used to pay for the 11 


inpatients? 12 


  DR. MASON:  I would have to defer that 13 


question to the Chief Operating Officer for the 14 


Health Department.  That is Doctor Martin. 15 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  What we should probably 16 


do -- I know we distributed these documents to the 17 


Board members this afternoon, but we should probably 18 


encourage them to send in writing any questions, 19 


because other than our hearing tomorrow, our current 20 


schedule is for the Board to actually adopt the 21 


budget next Wednesday. 22 


   That could be a real long meeting, if 23 


everybody is asking you the questions on the spot, 24 
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and you have fifty people scrambling around trying 1 


to get answers.  Why don't we send out an e-mail to 2 


everybody saying, "Why don't you send in your 3 


questions?"  remind them to send them just to Doctor 4 


Mason.  They can copy each other. 5 


   I think this is my last question for 6 


tonight -- in each of the individual items there is 7 


a line -- or at least in many of them there is a 8 


line called "Cook County Administration".  What is 9 


that?  It is 883.  Is that the fixed charges 10 


  MR. MORALES:  The fixed charges. 11 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  That is why the 12 


individuals totals are correct because we actually 13 


have Cook County Administration, 883, in all of the 14 


individuals. 15 


  MR. COOKINHAM:  It says "reimbursement for 16 


administrative services provided by the offices of 17 


the Cook County corporate fund". 18 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  If you look at the 19 


summary on the first three pages, that doesn't have 20 


an 883.  It has an 880 and an 814.  I think your 21 


original guess that that probably is the discrepancy 22 


is correct; 883. 23 


   I am sorry to blindside you with 24 
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these.  I just saw the detail tonight, and I had a 1 


few questions.  I figured the sooner we got 2 


questions into the pipeline, the better. 3 


   I don't have any more questions. 4 


  DR. MASON:  I would just like to, for the 5 


benefit of the people in the room, to walk through 6 


this document.  I apologize that we didn't walk 7 


through the document in the beginning. 8 


   I want to say that the first three 9 


pages represent a summary of all of the pages behind 10 


it, with the exception of the last page.  I will go 11 


through that in just a moment. 12 


   Each of the departments has a number 13 


that starts with the three-digit number "240", for 14 


example.  The next page is on Cermak Health 15 


Services.  These are the expenses related to Cermak. 16 


   The next is 241, for the Juvenile 17 


Detention Center.  The next page is 544, which is 18 


the lead prevention fund.  564, the TB Sanitarium 19 


District. 20 


   890 is the Office of the Chief Health 21 


Administrator.  This is the office that primarily is 22 


the office where all of the chief executive officers 23 


are in most of the contracts. 24 
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   Provident Hospital is 891.  The clinic 1 


system is 893.  The next page is 894, which is the 2 


Ruth Rothstein CORE Center.  895 is the Department 3 


of Public Health.  897, the next page, is the John 4 


H. Stroger, Jr., Hospital.  899 is the fixed charges 5 


that Mr. Carvalho just talked about.  That includes 6 


workmen's comp, health insurance, dental insurance, 7 


unemployment comp, all of the things that you see 8 


listed there.  You can see that we are charged in 9 


the Health System for our allocation of those 10 


things. 11 


   What is not in that number is our 12 


portion of the debt service, malpractice insurance.  13 


There are a couple of other things that are not in 14 


these numbers.  These are the numbers that the 15 


County does charge.  I just wanted to go over the 16 


document completely so you have an idea of what it 17 


is. 18 


   I have no further comment. 19 


   Mr. Carvalho. 20 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Thank you; and that 21 


last point is worth emphasizing because, 22 


historically, there are many fixed and other charges 23 


relating to the Health System that are borne by the 24 







48 
 
 
 


 ________________________________________________ 
 
 ANTHONY W. LISANTI - (312) 405-1383 


County.  So we as a System, and even before that as 1 


a Bureau, would present information about what our 2 


subsidy was. 3 


   People would then compare that subsidy 4 


to the subsidy in other counties, and that would be 5 


part of the conversation.  But while weren't 6 


intentionally being misleading, we were definitely 7 


being inaccurate when we don't include all of the 8 


costs of what the County provides. 9 


   Occasionally someone suggests that we 10 


are trying to obscure that, but we are not.  I think 11 


it is just because it was never on our books, we 12 


never presented them.  It is good to make note of 13 


them, especially -- even at the recent Board meeting 14 


there was some conversation of the dollars per 15 


resident subsidy, and how it compared to other 16 


places. 17 


   I think we need to inform the Board or 18 


remind the Board that there are tens of millions, a 19 


hundred million.  There is a substantial cost to the 20 


County, on the System, that currently hasn't been 21 


placed on our books.  We are certainly not asking it 22 


to be placed on our books, but it exists. 23 


   If we don't acknowledge it, we will be 24 
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accused of being misleading in that conversation.  1 


We are not trying to be, so it shouldn't be, and we 2 


ought to acknowledge it and figure out a way we can 3 


get that information to the Board so they at least 4 


understand that there is further hidden subsidies of 5 


the System by the County that we haven't heretofore 6 


acknowledged. 7 


   We have exhausted the audience, the 8 


questions, the court reporter.  I will bring the 9 


hearing to a close, and invite anybody who is 10 


interested to attend tomorrow's hearing at one 11 


o'clock at the County Building; where we will 12 


provide people another opportunity to comment. 13 


   By the way, since some of you who 14 


spoke tonight did not have the detailed information 15 


that we provided tonight, I have no problem with 16 


anybody wanting to testify again tomorrow who has 17 


already spoken at a prior hearing.  That is not a 18 


problem. 19 


   Thank you -- good night. 20 
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  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Good afternoon, 1 


everyone.  I would like to get our third public 2 


hearing started on our preliminary budget. 3 


   My name is David Carvalho.  I am the 4 


Chair of the Finance Committee for the Cook County 5 


Health and Hospitals System Board. 6 


  COMMISSIONER BEAVERS:  Can you speak a 7 


little louder? 8 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Sure.  I was actually 9 


trying to figure out which button to push. 10 


  COMMISSIONER BEAVERS:  It is the one with 11 


the red light. 12 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Does this work better? 13 


   Alright, now we have got all of the 14 


buttons pushed. 15 


   Welcome to this afternoon's hearing of 16 


the Cook County Health and Hospitals System Board on 17 


its preliminary budget for the proposed FY2012. 18 


   My name is David Carvalho.  I am the 19 


Chair of the Finance Committee of the Board.  Also 20 


with us on the dais is the Chairman of the Board, 21 


Mr. Warren Batts; our Interim Chief Executive 22 


Officer, Doctor Terry Mason; our Interim Chief 23 


Financial Officer, John Cookinham; and our Board 24 
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Secretary, Deborah Santana. 1 


   This is the third hearing on the 2 


budget, the proposed preliminary budget.  Let me put 3 


it into a timeline, and a context for moving 4 


forward. 5 


  The Cook County Hospitals and Health System 6 


is charged, under the ordinance that created the 7 


System, with creating a budget and submitting it to 8 


the Cook County Board for their consideration.  The 9 


Cook County Board, under the ordinance, then has 10 


forty-five days to consider the budget.  If they 11 


accept the budget, it is then transmitted to the 12 


Cook County Board President for inclusion in her 13 


budget to submit it to the Board. 14 


   As you may know, the Cook County Board 15 


President has set as a goal to adopt a budget for 16 


Cook County, which would include all of the units of 17 


Cook County, including the Cook County Health and 18 


Hospitals System, prior to the commencement of the 19 


fiscal year for Cook County.  The Cook County fiscal 20 


year begins December 1. 21 


   In the recent past, the Cook County 22 


budget has been adopted in February, which is 23 


allowed under the law, but the President has set a 24 
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goal to adopt a budget before the fiscal year 1 


begins. 2 


   At the System, we believe it is very 3 


much in our interest that the Cook County budget be 4 


adopted before the fiscal year begins.  We have 5 


committed to doing everything we could to get a 6 


budget adopted in time to allow all of the actions 7 


that have to take place after our adoption of the 8 


budget, to allow the Cook County budget to be 9 


adopted before the fiscal year begins.  So it is in 10 


our mutual interest.  But, because of that, we had 11 


to develop the process that we are completing this 12 


afternoon of having the budget considered by the 13 


Cook County Hospital System Board, in a very 14 


compressed time frame, and these hearings in a very 15 


compressed time frame. 16 


   I will start off right at the top and 17 


say -- I appreciate everyone coming under such short 18 


notice, and appreciate that everyone appreciates 19 


that the budget that we put together is our 20 


preliminary proposed budget; that the actual 21 


adoption of our budget will be next Wednesday. 22 


   We provided this short consideration 23 


in order to accommodate the timeline that will allow 24 
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the budget to be adopted before the fiscal year 1 


begins because we do think that is in our best 2 


interest as well. 3 


   Having said that, the first thing that 4 


we would like to do in this hearing is to have a 5 


presentation on the budget by our Interim Chief 6 


Executive Officer, Doctor Terry Mason. 7 


  DR. MASON:  Thank you, Chairman Carvalho. 8 


   What I would like to do is in the 9 


course of twelve slides to sort of summarize the 10 


process by which this budget was conceived. 11 


   What we tried to do is to go back and 12 


look at our Strategic Plan that we call "Vision 13 


2015", to look at the key areas that were necessary 14 


for us to make certain that we tried to address as 15 


best we could in our budget. 16 


   As you can tell, we have our mission, 17 


our vision, our core goals, which I will get into a 18 


little bit later, and the strategic initiatives that 19 


were really aligned with the core goals.  We think 20 


that tries to set the framework for our budget. 21 


   There were five core goals that we 22 


wanted to be certain that were addressed in our 23 


budget, and certainly tried to put the limited 24 
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resources that we would have around these areas.  1 


One was access.  The second one was quality and 2 


service excellence and culture competence.  The 3 


third, to build around our clinical strengths, and 4 


fourthly, invest in our employees and staff 5 


development.  And, fifth, to assure strong 6 


leadership.  Those are the goals. 7 


   What I would like to do now is to 8 


really walk you through some of the accomplishments 9 


that we were able to do in 2011.  In 2011, one of 10 


the major things was in December of 2010 we went 11 


from three different patient accounting systems, the 12 


financial accounting systems, one at Provident, one 13 


at Oak Forest, and one at Stroger -- neither of 14 


which talked to one another -- and consolidated 15 


those accounting systems down to one system. 16 


   Our goal for this year is to try get 17 


those in this year and next year to try to make 18 


certain that the patient management system, Cerner, 19 


then interfaces appropriately with this system so 20 


that we can move the transactional material, or the 21 


billing information from one system to the other so 22 


that we can appropriately bill patients for services 23 


rendered. 24 
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   There has been a lot of transformation 1 


that went on in the patient accounting and the 2 


revenue cycle area because we went to a group 3 


purchasing organization to try and cut our costs for 4 


the acquisition of materials.  In the patient 5 


accounting areas, we tried to beef up those areas to 6 


get us better ready to make certain that we 7 


accounted appropriately for what we have, but, even 8 


more importantly, to look at what we needed to do to 9 


be able to account for patients enrolled in managed 10 


care and other areas. 11 


   As you can recall, back on August 16, 12 


we converted Oak Forest Hospital to a regional 13 


outpatient center, thereby using one of the other 14 


major tenets of our Strategic Plan, which is to 15 


shift our resources from spending them on inpatient 16 


services to expend them on the outpatient services 17 


by about, over time, nearly 250,000 to 500,000 18 


additional visits. 19 


   We also started with the conversion of 20 


Provident Hospital this year from a hospital to a 21 


regional outpatient center with twenty-five beds.  22 


The imaging technology that had been in place at 23 


Stroger Hospital, particularly, was the same 24 
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imaging.  Some of it moved in from the old hospital, 1 


and much of it bought as new when the new hospital 2 


was built.  It is the original equipment that was 3 


there when the building was built.  It was important 4 


that that technology be replaced.  Much of the 5 


technology at Oak Forest is over twenty-five years 6 


old, and we are in the process of replacing that 7 


right now. 8 


   The staff reductions -- we had a 9 


number of staff reductions that have been going o 10 


actually for the last two years and the relocations 11 


of those staff.  That, hopefully, will be finished 12 


before we start the fiscal year. 13 


   In addition, we were awarded Joint 14 


Commission accreditation for the ambulatory care 15 


network. 16 


   For Stroger Hospital, as we look more 17 


specifically at each, and you will see some things 18 


that will continue to be in each of these areas -- 19 


but around operation efficiency are the kinds of 20 


things that you will see each one, in addition to 21 


investing in and making sure that our service 22 


delivery was better, that our patient care was the 23 


right level of quality, and that we enrolled and did 24 
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as many things in patient safety initiatives as we 1 


can possibly do.  We wanted to continue at Stroger 2 


to build on the service lines in maternal-child 3 


health, and to strengthen our already strong in many 4 


areas our emergency room and trauma center.  Our 5 


emergency department, for example, sees about four 6 


hundred patients a day.  We have increased our 7 


surgical services so that we can now take advantage 8 


of the nearly twenty operating room that we have at 9 


Stroger.  But, in addition, to take advantage of the 10 


operating rooms at Provident, which I will mention 11 


later. 12 


   Physician billing, which has not been 13 


done, we have done facility level billing.  We 14 


billed for the services that were performed by the 15 


facility, but we have never billed for physicians, 16 


individual physician billing.  That is one of the 17 


projects underway. 18 


   Our managed care contracts are some 19 


things that we have signed on and actually begun 20 


receiving payment on some of the managed care 21 


contracts. 22 


   At Provident Hospital, again, the same 23 


thing -- to deal with doing a better job in patient 24 
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care.  We have increased the number of outpatient 1 


surgeries being done at Provident, shifting some of 2 


the lower acuity surgeries that were done typically 3 


at Stroger, and moving those to sort of decrease the 4 


wait for things like hernias at Provident Hospital.  5 


We also wanted to expand our GYN surgery services.  6 


These are gynecological procedures for women who are 7 


having bleeding.  Our GI services for those people 8 


needing colonoscopies.  That is a scope passed 9 


through the rectum or down the mouth to look in the 10 


stomach or the rectum or the colon. 11 


   Our preprocessing center, which is a 12 


center that we are trying to make certain that we 13 


can preinterview people so that we can cut down the 14 


amount of time it takes once people come to the 15 


different areas to receive their services.  We 16 


continue to work with our partnerships at federally-17 


qualified health centers, and, again, implement our 18 


physician billing and the operational efficiencies 19 


that we talked about before. 20 


   At Oak Forest, we have expanded our 21 


original proposal for Oak Forest to go from a 22 


sixteen-hour coverage to a twenty-four-hour 23 


coverage, seven days a week.  This includes the 24 
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expansion of the primary care services and the pain 1 


management services and the neurology services, as 2 


those persons are hired. 3 


   An architect has been identified, and 4 


plans are now being done by Cook County -- what we 5 


will call "Big County" -- to their department to do 6 


the space planning and design for the "E" building.  7 


The "E" building is one of the buildings at Oak 8 


Forest Hospital.  Our plan is to move all of the 9 


patient-centered activity into that building. 10 


   I talked about the digital imaging 11 


environment.  That is our new CAT scanner, and 12 


making certain that our ultrasounds and regular x-13 


ray all tie into a digital imaging system that 14 


allows all films to eventually be read at Stroger 15 


Hospital. 16 


   Our ambulatory and community health 17 


network -- there has been a strategy to support 18 


managed care contracting.  This does require some 19 


changes in the way we do business in order to meet 20 


the requirements of managed care.  The 21 


implementation of additional specialty services at 22 


Oak Forest and Provident, we want to begin to make 23 


certain that we capture the opportunities that these 24 
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additional services will add by making certain at 1 


the billing and preprocessing center. 2 


   CareLink is something that is already 3 


placed in two of our facilities, and not yet at 4 


Stroger.  It will be rolled out at Stroger Hospital, 5 


but it is a way for us to verify.  Right now with 6 


our limits of liability program, we take a verbal 7 


information from the patient with regard to their 8 


status and income.  CareLink will ask us to get more 9 


proof of that income, and more proof of the 10 


residency and other things so that we can be certain 11 


to be sure that the care is appropriately discounted 12 


for the persons in Cook County. 13 


   Centralized scheduling is something 14 


that we are also looking to do to sort of decrease 15 


some of the wait and make that a much more 16 


streamlined process.  All of this is to try and 17 


focus on patient care and customer service. 18 


   From the Office of the Chief Health 19 


Administrator, a big part of our budget, about $90 20 


million of it is for pharmacy and information 21 


technology.  All of the patient accounting 22 


operations are in our Office of the Chief Health 23 


Administrator.  In the budget that is 890.  Internal 24 
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audit, system administration, finance, and HR are 1 


all in that area.  Our contracts to support our 2 


PricewaterhouseCoopers initiative, our initiatives 3 


around the revenue cycle and information technology 4 


are all in that area. 5 


   As we look at the operating budgets -- 6 


I will take the major budget at the top.  Stroger 7 


Hospital, you see the three columns.  One column 8 


with the adjusted budget with a five percent 9 


reduction from 2011, and our preliminary 2012 10 


budget.  In the last column, you will see what is 11 


the difference.  The difference, if it is more 12 


money, will show up as numbers, and, if it is less 13 


money, it will show up in brackets. 14 


   You can see that for Stroger there is 15 


an increase of $25 million.  For the Office of the 16 


Chief Health Administrator, that is $32 million.  17 


Much of the increase in the Stroger budget, we are 18 


trying to hire additional people, particularly 19 


nurses.  Not all of that is represented in that 20 


area. 21 


   The Office of the Chief Health 22 


Administrator is represented by an increase in 23 


contract costs. The Provident budget has gone down 24 
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$10 million.  The ACHN budget down $3.1 million.  1 


Oak Forest is down $13.8.  The CORE Center is stable 2 


at about $600,000. The fixed charges -- these are 3 


the charges for things like health insurance and 4 


pension benefits, which are charged back to the 5 


System.  As you can see, it is a little bit less 6 


than it was last year. 7 


   If we go down to look at Cermak, the 8 


Juvenile Detention Center, and the Department of 9 


Public Health, those budgets, in the aggregate, have 10 


gone down about $1.8 million. 11 


   If we look at where the money is going 12 


to come from, looking at our budget and all of the 13 


things we put in our budget are reflected in a 14 


payment source that comes from one of the sources in 15 


this pie chart.  No matter what it is, whether it is 16 


additional patient fees, it is all reflected in one 17 


of these pies. 18 


   As you can see, our largest source of 19 


revenue is Medicaid -- about $239.2 million.  We 20 


have two Federal programs that we are able to 21 


participate in, both the disproportionate share and 22 


BIPA.  Those are $140 and $131 million respectively.  23 


Medicare we collect about $75 million.  The 24 
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commercial, which is Blue Cross/Blue Shield and 1 


others -- HMOs and things of that nature -- is $17 2 


million.  Then the fees that we collect from 3 


employees and patients, for fees in food, comes to 4 


about $6 million. 5 


   In summary, if we look at all of this, 6 


if we look at our 2011 budget and our projected 7 


actual budget for 2011, since it is not finished 8 


yet, and our 2012 preliminary budget, you will see 9 


that the appropriation line that our expenses 10 


essentially are around $911 million for 2011.  For 11 


2012, we project $937.6 million.  If you look at the 12 


revenue for the fiscal year 2011, we projected that 13 


we would collect $638 million.  It looks as though 14 


we are going to be somewhere around $548 million in 15 


actual. 16 


   But that is not finished yet, and we 17 


are working hard to be certain that all of the 18 


different sources of revenue that we had placed in 19 


this to the best of our ability we collect on. 20 


   The last column is the difference.  21 


The last row is the difference.  This is what we are 22 


currently in negotiation with the County on, in 23 


terms of how we manage this difference.  Much of 24 
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this is handled by the amount of money that is given 1 


to us each year.  Right now, we are in negotiations 2 


with the Budget Office and the President's Office as 3 


to what the number will be for 2012.  We do not have 4 


a final target for 2012. 5 


   With that, Chairman Carvalho, that 6 


concludes my report. 7 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Thank you, Doctor 8 


Mason. 9 


   The next item on the agenda will be 10 


hearing from persons who have signed up.  Anybody 11 


who has signed up to be heard, we will hear them 12 


first.  If there are people that have not yet signed 13 


up, please do so, and we will hear them next. 14 


   The first person we have is Mr. George 15 


Blakemore.  What I will do is I will let the next 16 


person know they are next.  The next person is Mr. 17 


Mark Grach. 18 


   Mr. Blakemore -- each speaker has a 19 


loosely defined three-minute time period. 20 


   Mr. Blakemore, it is your turn.  If 21 


you can come to the microphone over there -- thank 22 


you. 23 


  MR. BLAKEMORE:  Good afternoon.  My name is 24 
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George Blakemore.  I am a concerned citizen, I am a 1 


public servant, and I am an activist in the black 2 


community.  I am an old man, almost seventy years 3 


old, and black, and poor.  I have used the services 4 


of the Hospital System. 5 


   I advocate for my community, black 6 


people receiving comprehensive healthcare with 7 


dignity and respect.  Because government, State 8 


Government, local government, and City Government, 9 


and the national government have refused to give my 10 


people reparations.  The legacy of slavery is still 11 


alive.  So I always advocate for my people to 12 


receive these services.  They are entitled to these 13 


services -- "White wealth and black labor." 14 


   The Jewish community always 15 


emphasized, "Remember the Holocaust."  Our 16 


community, it seems like they want to forget.  But 17 


this legacy of slavery lives on. 18 


   Here in this Health and Hospital 19 


System there is almost a billion dollars.  They have 20 


contracts for goods and services.  They have 21 


employees, staff, consultants.  I want to see my 22 


people receive all of these benefits -- financial 23 


benefits and health benefits.  This is why I come to 24 
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every one of these hearings.  I try to come to every 1 


one of the so-called Independent Health and 2 


Hospitals System, and each one of these committee 3 


meetings because I need to advocate for my 4 


community. 5 


   Some of the resources are no longer 6 


here in this County.  This County is broke -- 7 


almost.  The money is gone.  But it still has enough 8 


to let others come, who are not even citizens, and 9 


use the resources of this County. 10 


   Black leadership is silent. The 11 


professionals are silent.  But I have a voice and I 12 


use my voice to beat the drum and alert my people 13 


about what is going on.  The negative effect of 14 


illegal immigrants on native blacks here; with jobs, 15 


with the County, with the Health and Hospitals 16 


System, and the service.  When you go to the ER or 17 


go to the emergency room or seek out services, it is 18 


packed with people.  We should always be first in 19 


line to receive these services because we are due 20 


this service. 21 


   We have paid for this with our blood, 22 


sweat, and tears in this country, and to see how the 23 


Nation, and this County, is letting others come in 24 
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and get ahead of us for this service is 1 


unacceptable.  Maybe black leadership is silent on 2 


this, but I have a voice and I am raising my voice, 3 


and I am alerting my people, and they are not blind, 4 


crippled, or crazy.  They can see it, too. 5 


   So I am challenging this Independent 6 


Health and Hospitals System to make sure that blacks 7 


receive their fair share of health and these goods 8 


and services when it comes to these contracts.  You 9 


are not giving them nothing.  It is not nowhere or 10 


fair.  We never got our reparations.  The 11 


Constitution says do everything possible to make 12 


these people whole -- 13 


  SECRETARY SANTANA:  Three minutes, Mr. 14 


Blakemore. 15 


  MR. BLAKEMORE:  Three minutes -- wait just 16 


one moment.  Did the government do this?  No, they 17 


ignored this.  When it comes to affirmative action, 18 


white women, Hispanics -- everybody receives it, but 19 


it was meant for the slave children to try to make 20 


them whole. 21 


   Mr. Blakemore has spoken.  He has 22 


stood up and been seen.  He has spoke out and been 23 


heard, and the ancestors are saying, "Amen - amen - 24 
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amen and amen."  I know that our leadership -- I am 1 


praying that they would step up and not be silent on 2 


this because we just have a limited amount of 3 


dollars.  When it comes to cutting this pie, I want 4 


the black community to get their share of this pie, 5 


and not to share it with nobody. 6 


   Thank you again, and have a peaceful 7 


and blessed day.  I came here to deliver this 8 


message to you.  You can like it or not, but they 9 


say lift up your voice in the black national anthem, 10 


lift it up and I have lifted it up. 11 


   Thank you, and have a peaceful and 12 


blessed day. 13 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Thank you, Mr. 14 


Blakemore. 15 


   Our next speaker is Mr. Mark Grach, 16 


who will be followed by Doctor Shah. 17 


  MR. GRACH:  My name is Mark Grach.  I am 18 


manager at Grach, Pleko, Sinkhoff, Jones & Bellamy, 19 


and chair-elect of the Access to Care program.  I am 20 


here to thank you for funding the Access to Care 21 


program in the past and to urge you to fund it in 22 


the 2012 budget. 23 


   Access to Care has been part of the 24 
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delivery system of primary healthcare since 1991 1 


when Cook County began providing funding.  Access to 2 


Care serves the uninsured working poor throughout 3 


suburban Cook County.  We use private physicians who 4 


give care to uninsured people in their own offices 5 


for sixty-eight dollars per person per year, and the 6 


patient's co-payment of five dollars per visit.  7 


Access to Care has no overhead or capital expenses 8 


for these visits, nor for the diagnostic laboratory 9 


tests, x-rays, or prescriptions that the program 10 


also covers.  The Access to Care program operates 11 


completely in the private sector of medicine. 12 


   The private sector gives discounts and 13 


in-kind contributions that would not be available to 14 


Cook County, if it approached them directly.  The 15 


nearly seven hundred private physicians who care for 16 


uninsured working poor patients in the Access to 17 


Care program are estimated to contribute $3 million 18 


of in-kind contributions. 19 


   Access to Care patients have been 20 


cared for in the private sector through the Access 21 


to Care program.  We have opened up the medical 22 


infrastructure to a new group of people, the 23 


uninsured, and actually increased access. 24 
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   Access to Care has always been an 1 


efficient, cost-effective public-private partnership 2 


where County dollars go further because they are 3 


used by a charity to get discounts from the private 4 


system.  Your $2 million contribution in 2010 5 


leveraged over $5 million of in-kind contributions 6 


from the private sector. 7 


   Access to Care is the most cost-8 


effective vehicle for Cook County to reach people 9 


who live far from public facilities.  It costs 10 


$871.03 for one person to receive a whole year's 11 


worth of healthcare services, including prescription 12 


drugs.  If you think of your own healthcare 13 


insurance costs, this is extremely cost-effective. 14 


   We thank you for your commitment to 15 


Access to Care, and ask you to reinstate it in the 16 


Cook County budget for 2012 at the $3 million level.  17 


With greater funds, we can serve more people, and 18 


keep them out of Stroger and/or Provident Hospitals.  19 


We have the physicians ready to do so, and only lack 20 


the funds to fill doctor slots already available. 21 


   Thank you for this opportunity to 22 


testify, and thank you for your funding of Access to 23 


Care. 24 
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   I will take a moment to convey thanks, 1 


convey thanks to the Board of Directors of Access to 2 


Care and the staff, who have also worked diligently 3 


to do the most they can with the County dollars. 4 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Thank you, Mr. Grach. 5 


   There has been a substitution.  Doctor 6 


Shah is unable to be here, but his colleague, Emilie 7 


Junge, is here to speak on his behalf. 8 


  MS. JUNGE:  I am Emilie Junge, J-U-N-G-E -- 9 


thank you. 10 


   Doctor Shah is stuck in clinic.  I am 11 


speaking on behalf of the Doctors Council. 12 


   Doctor Shah is a family practice 13 


physician.  One of the things that he and some of 14 


the other physicians have been saying is that they 15 


are stretched to the max, particularly in the ACHN 16 


clinics. 17 


   The ratio of ancillary staff to 18 


doctors has gotten worse.  Without additional staff, 19 


including nurses, primary care providers, and other 20 


personnel, they are telling us that they will not be 21 


able to deliver adequate care, much less prepare for 22 


the additional patients that might come to us 23 


through the Affordable Care Act. 24 
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   We are here to urge you to demand that 1 


the Health System be fully funded.  Our union is not 2 


only a voice in the work, but also a voice for 3 


patients.  We are the ones who have to tell the 4 


patients that we can't get a specialist appointment 5 


for six months or more.  We are the ones that have 6 


to spend time trying to get a referral, or deal with 7 


prescriptions -- tasks which keep the doctors from 8 


giving the kind of care that they are trained to do. 9 


   We are asking you for a commitment to 10 


distribute resources from the executive suite to the 11 


front lines, by ensuring that consultants and 12 


managers are not taking resources away from vital 13 


patient care without careful justification. 14 


   Really, what we are asking you to do 15 


is to look closely and carefully at the consulting 16 


contracts and some of the managerial salaries.  But 17 


we continue to extend our hand in building a 18 


partnership to fight for the resources to make this 19 


system a robust one, and to deliver the kind of care 20 


that will make our system prepared for 2014. 21 


   Thanks. 22 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Thank you, Ms. Junge. 23 


   The next scheduled speaker -- I'm 24 
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sorry.  I forgot to preannounce you.  It is Ms. 1 


Christine Boardman, and following Ms. Boardman is 2 


Adrienne Alexander.  I see we have someone here on 3 


behalf of Ms. Boardman. 4 


  MR. BORGERS:  Close, but not quite.  5 


Christine couldn't make it today, unfortunately, so 6 


I am speaking on her behalf. 7 


   My name is Frank Borgers, 8 


B-O-R-G-E-R-S, and I am speaking on behalf of Local 9 


73. 10 


   I don't want to repeat too much of 11 


what Emilie just said, but just to reiterate.  As 12 


you know, as the Board knows, SEIU, Local 73, and 13 


the Doctors Council stand firmly behind Vision 2015, 14 


in terms of the basic goals:  expanded outpatient 15 


services in strategic locations; increased access to 16 


care; and an integrated patient-centered care 17 


delivery model. 18 


   Now, in the absence of a line item 19 


budget, we have to speak broadly.  But, in the big 20 


picture, and we did a report last year in terms of 21 


the long-term trend, which we called "cut to the 22 


bone".  Despite the increased requests for funding, 23 


it continues to be the case.  While this year's 24 
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appropriations is roughly $25 million more, if you 1 


adjust for healthcare inflation, the actual dollars 2 


in real dollars is $185 million less in funding for 3 


the System in "2004". 4 


   As we have heard, some of them are 5 


vacant, but in terms of the care that is needed, two 6 


thousand FTE positions are deleted between 2004 and 7 


2011.  While this budget does increase staffing by 8 


about four hundred FTEs, there is only funding for 9 


about twenty percent of those.  So it leaves 10 


staffing flat essentially for this year.  As we 11 


know, the President's Office rejected the initial 12 


offer. 13 


   We are here to say that the Health 14 


System cannot sustain any further service or staff 15 


cuts.  We believe that additional funding cuts will 16 


lead to the closure of community clinics; 17 


potentially the closure of Provident Hospital; and 18 


deep cuts to the very basic and critical healthcare 19 


services throughout the System. 20 


   Perhaps as importantly, the failure to 21 


invest now will have disastrous consequences down 22 


the road.  In 2014, the health reform, and in 2015, 23 


the State Medicaid reform.  The ability of the 24 
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System to attract paying patients that will now be 1 


covered will be severely compromised, if we cut more 2 


services.  From a budgetary standpoint, the current 3 


fifty-plus percent self-pay will be at "who knows" 4 


-- seventy-five to eighty percent self-pay.  The 5 


downstream costs, for instance, for the County are 6 


severe. 7 


   What we are asking for is challenging, 8 


but we believe there needs to be where the political 9 


forces need to come together to figure out a bridge 10 


to 2014.  If we make it to 2014, if we restructure 11 


the system, then at least we have a chance of 12 


finally dealing with the financial issues that 13 


plague the system. 14 


   Just to reinforce what Emilie said:  15 


we believe there has to be a commitment to the 16 


funding and the hiring for the new frontline vacant 17 


care positions -- there were a number of layoffs and 18 


a number of members are on layoff and hoping to come 19 


back into the System.  Obviously, with twenty 20 


percent funding, that may become complicated. 21 


   We believe that there has been an 22 


untoward shift in resources towards consulting 23 


contracts.  It is hard to gauge from the outside, 24 
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but we believe that things are out of hand.  1 


Likewise, Emilie mentioned the executive salaries.  2 


Just to point out, the argument is being met -- we 3 


need to pay a private sector, or at these levels to 4 


attract top management staff, but they have all left 5 


or are in the process of leaving.  Perhaps rather 6 


than trying to match salaries, how about we hire 7 


executives that are committed to public healthcare? 8 


   Then the third step -- we have been, 9 


for the last year and a half, pushing as you know 10 


towards a partnership between frontline employees 11 


and the management team.  We have had a commitment 12 


from the Board.  We had a commitment from the 13 


previous CEO towards this.  But we have seen no 14 


action on this agenda.  We need to see that. 15 


   So that is it.  Thank you. 16 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Thank you, Mr. Borgers. 17 


   The next person who has signed up is 18 


Ms. Adrienne Alexander. 19 


  MS. ALEXANDER:  Hi.  My name is Adrienne 20 


Alexander.  I am a policy and legislative specialist 21 


from AFSCME, Council 31. 22 


   We represent about one thousand 23 


members in the Health System, some of which are here 24 
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today.  This is the first I have seen of the more 1 


detailed lines in the budget, so I just wanted to 2 


make a few general points. 3 


   First of all, AFSCME has concerns 4 


about the increasing costs in the numbers of staff 5 


that are on contract in the Health System, 6 


particularly with PwC and Chamberlin-Edmonds, who do 7 


the coding.  While that accounts for a portion of 8 


the increases in the Chief Health Administrator's 9 


Office, we hope that increases in this department, 10 


while there are cuts in frontline staff, will 11 


continue to be monitored, and tamped down a bit. 12 


   On that point, everyone on the Board, 13 


and Mr. Ayres, the former CFO, seemed to recognize 14 


that more hiring needs to be done.  We are concerned 15 


about how the System will be able to manage the many 16 


vacancies that are going to be on the books and the 17 


limited money that is going to be allocated to hire. 18 


   Last Friday, Chairman Batts said that 19 


we can't cut more without doing harm to the people 20 


we serve.  A quick glance at this presentation that 21 


was handed out today shows that you have already 22 


done that.  At Provident, for example, there are 23 


further cuts.  We are really concerned, especially 24 
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if you are not yet to the number that President 1 


Preckwinkle wants you all to get to. 2 


   We are in tough times, and more people 3 


are relying on their resources at the Cook County 4 


Health System, and the services that we provide. 5 


   I hope that this System passes a 6 


budget that allows for all of us to remain true to 7 


the mission and to provide those services to those 8 


that are in most need. 9 


   Thank you. 10 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Thank you, Ms. 11 


Alexander. 12 


   We have also received a signup sheet 13 


from Doctor Ellen Mason, who I haven't seen in years 14 


-- Doctor Mason. 15 


  DR. MASON:  Good afternoon.  I apologize 16 


for being late, and I apologize if what I am saying 17 


is reiterative, but I think it is still -- excuse me 18 


-- important. 19 


   Basically, I am addressing some of the 20 


points that I just heard addressed, but maybe in a 21 


slightly different way.  I am an internal medicine 22 


doctor, and I work in several clinic areas in the 23 


hospital and in Fantus.  I mostly take care of 24 
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pregnant women with medical problems, psychiatric or 1 


behavioral disorders.  I see regular medical 2 


patients, and I am in the HIV clinic at the CORE 3 


Center.  I have been working at County for twenty-4 


five years. 5 


   I want to say parenthetically I am 6 


here on a vacation day.  I am on my own dime right 7 


now. 8 


   I have been here for a long time.  I 9 


have seen lots of uncertainty, but I never felt that 10 


our healthcare system was at such a high risk of 11 


coming apart.  This system is held together with 12 


spit and prayer, with extended hours and out-of-job 13 


work being done by a very devoted staff.  They are 14 


already overburdened, and they will not be able to 15 


take on more, and they will not be able to take care 16 


of patients effectively or safely, if cuts are made.  17 


Even when you are off, you do get paged a lot. 18 


   So that is the rub.  Can we function 19 


if all of the cuts are made to staff and resources?  20 


Can we exist at all, even though the need for the 21 


hospital is great, and our clinics are packed, and 22 


there are waits for every kind of care?  If we lose 23 


all of our insured patients who go elsewhere, and if 24 
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the folks left behind have no other choices, they 1 


will go away, if they have choices, given their 2 


increasing negative experience with us in the not-3 


so-distant future, what are we left with? 4 


   My patients -- the prenatal patients, 5 


the geriatric patients, patients with disability -- 6 


are very important to me in and of themselves, but I 7 


think they are very important to the System right 8 


now, and in the future, from a fiduciary point of 9 


view. 10 


   Medicare patients, SIS patients, and 11 


pregnant women are all covered by some form of 12 


insurance, and they are all billable sources of 13 


revenue.  New cuts in services will cause these 14 


patients to go away.  We will be short again in our 15 


revenue projections.  These patients are just going 16 


to jump ship. 17 


   Our system is already undermined, and 18 


our patients notice it.  Our patients notice long 19 


waits.  They will have to wait to register, to get 20 


blood drawn.  If they call the hospital, no one 21 


answers the phones.  There are no longer any clerks 22 


or support people to do that. 23 


   They cope with a scarcity of access to 24 
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tests, consults, and specialty appointments.  They 1 


see that we don't have working fax machines or Xerox 2 


machines.  If I have a lady with a lump in her neck, 3 


she might wait four months for a scan.  Oh, well, it 4 


is cancer.  She might be even unluckier; her mother 5 


might die the week of her scan, and she can't make 6 


it, and she waits a year to get her scan.  That is 7 


where we are at right now. 8 


   I think our patients feel discouraged, 9 


disappointed, and disrespected by our system as it 10 


is.  They don't know as much as we know.  We hide it 11 


very well, that our system functions with the barest 12 


of resources, probably way too efficiently. 13 


   What the patients don't realize is 14 


without the resources, as well as further investment 15 


in the understaffed areas and the infrastructure, we 16 


won't function safely and we can't probably function 17 


at all. 18 


   An analogy -- you can chop off the leg 19 


of a table; if you prop it up against the wall, it 20 


will probably remain standing.  If you chop off 21 


another leg, you can prop it.  With more care and 22 


bracing, it will stand.  I think we are on the third 23 


leg.  I think with these kinds of cuts, this table 24 
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can't stand at all.  The System will not exist at 1 


all, and we will not be able to meet any minimum 2 


standards of safety or efficacy for our care. 3 


   Despite all of the large effort and 4 


expenditures for many of the talented consultants 5 


who have been mustered to help us to retool for the 6 


future, there just is no future if there is no 7 


present.  Our future is melting away.  All of the 8 


planning and expense and planning in the world will 9 


make no difference, if there is nothing to build on. 10 


   Thank you. 11 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Thank you, Doctor 12 


Mason. 13 


   We have two more speakers.  Doctor 14 


Charles William.  Behind him, Elizabeth Egan. 15 


   Doctor Williams. 16 


  DR. WILLIAMS:  Thank you for the 17 


opportunity of addressing you again.  I have done 18 


this several times in the past.  I addressed the 19 


Board of Commissioners, as well as the Board for the 20 


hospital administration. 21 


   My concern is dentistry.  The making 22 


of the program, a comprehensive program throughout 23 


the Health System.  Now, dentistry is not present.  24 
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I won't go into all of the details, because I have 1 


done that previously in addressing the Board. 2 


   But I do want to say this:  I want 3 


dentistry to be considered in any future budget for 4 


next year because of the fact that it is a necessary 5 


service.  So many systemic diseases can be detected 6 


from an oral examination. 7 


   I won't be speaking at any length 8 


because I have said this many times, and I don't 9 


want to repeat again.  Please consider dentistry and 10 


please consider it in your next budget. 11 


   With that, I will conclude.  If there 12 


any questions, I will be here to answer them. 13 


   Thank you. 14 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Thank you, Doctor 15 


Williams. 16 


   The next speaker is Miss Lisa Egan. 17 


  MS. EGAN:  I work at Fantus.  I work in the 18 


OB/GYN department.  I am also a floater at Fantus 19 


Clinic. 20 


   My question is, why are you moving OB 21 


across the street to the hospital in clinic "B" 22 


where the dentist clinic is at, with all of those 23 


chemicals that are in that clinic?  You are supposed 24 
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to be bringing in revenue.  Why are they going 1 


there?  Why aren't they going to another clinic 2 


where not all of those chemicals are at? 3 


   Then we were told about the parking, 4 


that it was free for our pregnant patients.  They 5 


turned around and told us -- no, it is a five dollar 6 


charge.  Our pregnant patients are extremely upset 7 


because they got to pay the five dollar parking.  8 


Shouldn't that be free for them?  If we need these 9 


pregnant patients for the revenue to pay the bills, 10 


they should be free.  Give them something.  Give 11 


them anything to come to our clinic. 12 


   Fantus Clinic -- I don't know if any 13 


of you have been there -- it is a horrible clinic.  14 


It is old.  It is dirty.  The ceilings are falling 15 


in.  They got the heat on and it's eighty-five 16 


degrees outside, and they got the heat on -- why?  17 


That is a waste of money. 18 


   We are concerned about our pregnant 19 


patients going across the street where all the 20 


chemicals are at.  It smells over there.  We did a 21 


tour.  It smells.  You can smell the chemicals.  22 


Women -- anybody here that is pregnant -- you can 23 


smell it when you are pregnant. 24 
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   Can't they pick another clinic for 1 


these pregnant patients to go?  Give them something, 2 


comfortable clinic to go where they can say -- gee, 3 


I want to have my baby at Stroger.  Because a lot of 4 


them come, get their medical card, they go to 5 


Northwestern, they go down the street to Rush, or 6 


they go to UIC. 7 


   Our patients stay for Doctor Mason.  8 


That is why they come, is for Doctor Mason.  She is 9 


a dedicated doctor.  Those patients come asking for 10 


her.  She don't care if she got fifty patients.  If 11 


her patient comes, she comes and sees them.  If 12 


every doctor and every physician at the hospital is 13 


like Doctor Mason, they would never leave.  They 14 


would stay.  They don't want to stay because it's 15 


dirty -- the seats, they are benches from 1965.  16 


They should be as comfortable as these chairs.  They 17 


should be sitting in these chairs. 18 


  COMMISSIONER BEAVERS:  These are not 19 


comfortable. 20 


  MS. EGAN:  They are better than a bench, 21 


sir. 22 


  COMMISSIONER BEAVERS:  They got the heat on 23 


because they need the heat on.  It is cold outside. 24 
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  MS. EGAN:  No, not at eighty-five degrees. 1 


  COMMISSIONER BEAVERS:  For the old people, 2 


in July.  I had to turn my heat on last week because 3 


it was cold. 4 


  MS. EGAN:  Pregnant women are hot all the 5 


time. 6 


   Thank you. 7 


  COMMISSIONER BEAVERS:  If you are pregnant, 8 


you need heat, and you are going to turn it on at 9 


home, if you got some.  You just don't want to pay 10 


the gas. 11 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Thank you, Ms. Egan, 12 


for your testimony.  I am not in a position to 13 


address your questions, but I am in a position to 14 


second your sentiment about Doctor Mason, who I have 15 


known for twenty years, and I would repeat 16 


everything you said, and agree with it. 17 


   Thank you, Doctor Mason, and Ms. Egan. 18 


   Ms. Egan was our last public speaker. 19 


   Are there others who wanted to speak 20 


who haven't yet filled out a form? 21 


  COMMISSIONER COLLINS:  I did have a 22 


question -- 23 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  I wanted to let the 24 
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speakers go, and then offer an opportunity -- did 1 


you want to talk to Ms. Egan? 2 


  COMMISSIONER COLLINS:  One of the 3 


statements that she made, I am very keenly concerned 4 


about.  What does she mean about the chemicals?  5 


This is something that I am going to be walking over 6 


there tomorrow or today to take a look at myself.  7 


What does she mean by that?  Why are the chemicals 8 


there?  What kind of chemicals are they talking 9 


about? 10 


  MS. EGAN:  It is the dental clinic, clinic 11 


"D".  That is where they pull out all of the teeth.  12 


All that stuff that they do. 13 


  COMMISSIONER COLLINS:  Have they shut it 14 


down? 15 


  MS. EGAN:  No.  Pregnant women and the 16 


dental clinic are combined together as one.  They 17 


have got this little tiny hall. 18 


  COMMISSIONER SIMS:  She said that is a 19 


lousy clinic  20 


  MS. EGAN:  Thank you - thank you. 21 


  COMMISSIONER COLLINS:  When did that move 22 


altogether over there? 23 


  MS. EGAN:  Monday, September 26. 24 
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  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  There is any number of 1 


people who might be able to address that question, 2 


but I am not one of them. 3 


  MS. SCHNEIDER:  I am Carol Schneider, 4 


S-C-H-N-E-I-D-E-R, Interim Chief Operating Officer 5 


of the Cook County Health System at Stroger 6 


Hospital. 7 


   I will be pleased to provide a little 8 


more information about this topic. 9 


   In fact, we are moving our prenatal OB 10 


clinic from Fantus over to Stroger Hospital on the 11 


first floor.  This is part of our Vision 2015 12 


initiatives relating to our Excellence in 13 


Maternal/Child Services.  This is one of the first 14 


moves to hopefully increase the number of our OB and 15 


pediatric patients coming to the Health System. 16 


   We are moving the clinic from Fantus.  17 


Some of you have had the chance to see the 18 


capabilities, the facilities.  This is a marked 19 


improvement for our patients to come over to 20 


Stroger.  We are moving next week.  In fact, we are 21 


taking some space that used to be housing the dental 22 


clinic. 23 


   The dental clinic is not ending.  It 24 
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is not going to be merged with the OB clinic.  In 1 


fact, those patients will be seen in the corridor 2 


that is adjacent in an available space.  Patients 3 


will continue to be seen for oral surgery and dental 4 


services in the same area, but not in the same 5 


hallway. 6 


   We have ensured that all of the 7 


infectious disease issues and all of the 8 


epidemiology issues have been addressed.  We have 9 


looked at all of the State requirements, and all of 10 


the Joint Commission requirements.  We are meeting 11 


all of the requirements with this move. 12 


   I can't address the smells.  I can 13 


only tell you that that area has been under 14 


construction for the last couple of weeks.  I was 15 


there for two hours last evening.  There is painting 16 


going on, floors are being waxed, so there may be 17 


some smells related to that.  I would welcome 18 


everyone to come in another week after we move in 19 


and tour the area and see the improvements that we 20 


have made. 21 


  COMMISSIONER COLLINS:  Where are the 22 


pregnant women clinic?  Where do they go for 23 


services before you move there? 24 
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  MS. SCHNEIDER:  It is currently in the 1 


Fantus Clinic on the fourth floor.  It is 2 


inconvenient as far as getting up to the floor for 3 


parking, for laboratory, which every patient has. 4 


  COMMISSIONER COLLINS:  Why don't they just 5 


take the elevator? 6 


  MS. SCHNEIDER:  They do take the elevator 7 


currently.  But if you have seen the Fantus Clinic, 8 


the first floor Stroger Hospital space is an 9 


improvement.  It also puts our patients closer to 10 


the inpatient unit where they will deliver their 11 


babies.  It gives them a chance to come and see 12 


where they will ultimately have their babies, to see 13 


our pediatric services because we hope to keep these 14 


patients so they don't go to private hospitals in 15 


the area. 16 


  COMMISSIONER COLLINS:  How do you respond 17 


to her complaint? 18 


  MS. SCHNEIDER:  I welcome to sit down and 19 


talk personally, and also with Doctor Patel.  I can 20 


tell you that we have looked at all of the area 21 


around where they are moving.  It is safe for our 22 


patients.  I can't address her concerns around the 23 


smells. 24 
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  COMMISSIONER COLLINS:  Why don't you do an 1 


air quality test or something?  Can you do that? 2 


  MS. SCHNEIDER:  I suppose we can do an air 3 


quality test, but there is any chemicals directly 4 


where the patients are going to be.  They are going 5 


to be in exam rooms and a centering room where there 6 


will be some education for pregnant moms when they 7 


come. 8 


  COMMISSIONER COLLINS:  They shouldn't have 9 


to go through smelling any of these chemicals. 10 


  MS. SCHNEIDER:  I would agree with you. 11 


  COMMISSIONER COLLINS:  How are you going to 12 


isolate them from the dental clinic? 13 


  MS. SCHNEIDER:  The dental clinic is in a 14 


separate hallway. 15 


  COMMISSIONER COLLINS:  Is it or is it not?  16 


Who is saying "no"? 17 


  MS. SCHNEIDER:  I will be glad to tour you 18 


next week.  They will be moving on Monday and we 19 


will welcome the opportunity to share the new space 20 


and walk you through it. 21 


  COMMISSIONER COLLINS:  Will the dental 22 


clinic have a different entry from the hallway? 23 


  MS. SCHNEIDER:  The dental clinic will come 24 
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in off the main Stroger hallway.  There is an entry 1 


that says "clinic 'D'".  There is a separate doorway 2 


that now says "prenatal OB" off of the main 3 


corridor.  It is our intent to have two separate 4 


entrances, separate registration, a separate waiting 5 


area so there will be a dedicated space for the 6 


prenatal-OB clinic. 7 


  COMMISSIONER COLLINS:  And it will be far 8 


enough from the dental clinic for it not to have an 9 


impact from the chemicals that they use? 10 


  MS. SCHNEIDER:  Yes, ma'am.  That is our 11 


intent. 12 


  COMMISSIONER COLLINS:  Back to the dental 13 


clinic.  The doctor that spoke, the dentist.  I 14 


concur with him.  One of the things, if you take a 15 


look out in the communities, where there is a 16 


substantially disproportionate number of indigent 17 


patients.  If you look at the age range, especially 18 


more so when you look at African American males or 19 


Latinos, poor people in general and look at their 20 


mouths, the first thing you see, be it forty-five or 21 


fifty years old, they are walking around with no 22 


teeth or raggedy teeth or cavities that you can see. 23 


   You look at them and you know they are 24 
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not healthy.  What happens is they end up being, 1 


from the teeth decay, as he said, with other kinds 2 


of illnesses and diseases.  Then they end up in 3 


Stroger Hospital or into more serious, more 4 


expensive treatment.  If we could deal with that 5 


problem -- they will never get a job walking around 6 


looking like that, too, because once you walk in to 7 


be interviewed, people see you as being 8 


irresponsible.  If you can't take care of yourself, 9 


how can you take care of business for us?  People do 10 


discriminate against people who walk in with raggedy 11 


mouths.  They don't get jobs. 12 


   We need to, in your budget, to 13 


emphasize the importance of dental care.  I totally 14 


agree with him.  I think that is where we are 15 


missing the mark. 16 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Thank you, 17 


Commissioner.  I met with Doctor Williams yesterday, 18 


and met with him several times.  I couldn't agree 19 


with you more.  I was co-chair of the State task 20 


force on oral health.  It goes beyond what you said, 21 


not only dental issues that aren't addressed become 22 


bigger problems, but dentists, in their regular 23 


activities, can detect cancers that might otherwise 24 







46 
 
 
 


 ________________________________________________ 
 
 ANTHONY W. LISANTI - (312) 405-1383 


go undiagnosed. 1 


   As with everything that we have heard 2 


today, and everything that we have dealt with over 3 


the last several years, there is no area of our 4 


budget where there isn't greater need than we have 5 


resources.  It is all a question of balancing those. 6 


  COMMISSIONER COLLINS:  That is the 7 


question.  I want to ask that question.  How are you 8 


going to balance your budget? 9 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  As has been alluded to, 10 


even the budget that we have before us today for 11 


hearing as a proposed budget exceeds the budget that 12 


we understand you have the resources to fund.  This 13 


process is going to be a challenging one all around. 14 


   Commissioner Beavers had questions, 15 


too.  I don't want to end the hearing before he gets 16 


back.  I didn't see who was raising their hands -- 17 


Doctor Mason. 18 


  DR. MASON:  Commissioner Collins, I wanted 19 


to also say that I couldn't agree with you more.  20 


The problem that we have, however, is that at one 21 


time there were three dental schools that used to 22 


have clinics to help the indigent, as you may 23 


remember.  Northwestern had a school; the University 24 
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of Illinois had a school; and Loyola had a school.  1 


Right now, there is only one place, and that is 2 


Loyola University. 3 


   Our oral surgery clinic, which is 4 


really a dental clinic, but it is an oral surgery 5 


clinic.  We take patients at eight o'clock in the 6 


morning -- I think it is about eight o'clock -- and 7 


in about four minutes all of the slots that we have 8 


for the day are full. 9 


   I can't emphasize more than what Mr. 10 


Carvalho has indicated -- that we have a demand that 11 


will far exceed everything that we can do in every 12 


area that we almost touch.  I just want to let you 13 


know -- we hear that.  We are doing the best we can 14 


to try to increase those resources where we can and 15 


within the constraints of what we have. 16 


  COMMISSIONER COLLINS:  This is what I would 17 


like for you all to do, is to take another look at 18 


the administrative office and the contracts that we 19 


have.  There is no way that you can continue to cut 20 


the frontline staff and then make me believe -- I 21 


don't know about other people -- as Commissioners to 22 


sit here and vote for a budget and say, "Okay, it is 23 


going to be alright." 24 
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   It is not going to be alright.  1 


Because what is going to happen, you are not going 2 


to save any money -- I sit on the Litigation 3 


Committee and I get to review the malpractice cases 4 


that come before this Board, which is a substantial 5 


part of our budget.  You are going to have to cut 6 


back at that top level, and look at how much it was 7 


before it became a Systems Board. 8 


   I know that some of you are making 9 


sacrifices, and I thought that when this Board was 10 


created -- of course, we did it against my better 11 


judgment; I voted for a tax so that the System could 12 


be funded.  I believed in what you were doing in 13 


terms of that.  But nothing is changing now, and 14 


that is the reality.  And given the fact that the 15 


plan back there again didn't take into consideration 16 


the National Health Care Bill, nor did it take into 17 


consideration that Cook County -- which I support -- 18 


has become one of the most liberal States, I think, 19 


in the Nation as it relates to undocumented workers.  20 


We have to insure and provide healthcare to that 21 


constituency.  They are human beings. 22 


   On the other side of that, we have to 23 


get Washington to change the immigration policy to a 24 







49 
 
 
 


 ________________________________________________ 
 
 ANTHONY W. LISANTI - (312) 405-1383 


point where we can get reimbursed for those 1 


patients.  We cannot treat patients who really don't 2 


have social security cards.  Then we can't apply for 3 


reimbursement because that is what the hospital 4 


system is for, for us to serve the indigent who are 5 


basically qualified for reimbursement. 6 


   There is not going to be enough money 7 


to cover it.  If, like me and my family, if I was an 8 


immigrant, I would move to Cook County.  If I had no 9 


job or no healthcare, I would move here, too.  That 10 


is what you are going to find.  You are going to end 11 


up with self-pay people who you will never get a 12 


dime from because the Federal Government will not 13 


reimburse you for that population.  That is a 14 


reality unless you get something changed in 15 


Washington. 16 


   I would ask that you work with our 17 


delegation to try and get that changed so that at 18 


least they can qualify.  They are human beings, and 19 


I support that.  Because when it happened to the 20 


African Americans that went back to Israel, one 21 


hundred kids, babies were either seriously damaged 22 


from just simple measles and died because they 23 


refused to give them inoculations or any kind of 24 
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healthcare because they were citizens without 1 


access, which was wrong because those babies could 2 


not tear up their passports, or those that were born 3 


there could not apply for citizenship on their own. 4 


   We were able to work that out.  They 5 


did get the healthcare that they needed, and thank 6 


God for that.  It worked for us.  I would be less 7 


than human to say we shouldn't treat people -- I 8 


don't care how they are here.  If they are sick, 9 


they need it, they are human beings, and they should 10 


not be denied. 11 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Thank you, 12 


Commissioner.  I also agree with you.  At one of our 13 


other hearings what I said was we only offer 14 


discounts based on residency, but we offer care 15 


based on humanity.  There is no test for residency 16 


or citizenship for care.  But the discounts are only 17 


offered based on residency. 18 


   The comment has been raised by several 19 


speakers, and you raised it as well, but at least 20 


tell you my two cents on this.  I am trying to 21 


respond to her comment -- 22 


  COMMISSIONER SIMS:  I thought maybe you 23 


didn't want to hear from me. 24 







51 
 
 
 


 ________________________________________________ 
 
 ANTHONY W. LISANTI - (312) 405-1383 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  No, no.  I am trying to 1 


respond to her comment.  I think it is a false 2 


dichotomy between frontline and managerial, for the 3 


following reasons.  There were two pie charts up 4 


there.  The pie chart, when people talk about the 5 


expense on the managerial side, is the expense pie 6 


chart.  But there is a second pie chart, which was 7 


the revenue pie chart. 8 


   We are fooling ourselves if we think 9 


-- if we slash the consultants, who are helping us 10 


provide the revenue, that we are freeing up money to 11 


spend on frontline people, because our revenues will 12 


go into the toilet.  We will not have the revenues 13 


to even support the frontline and other staff that 14 


we have now. 15 


   There is a common expression about 16 


insanity, and it is doing everything the way you 17 


have always done it and assuming different results.  18 


We already know what happens in our system the way 19 


we have been doing things on the revenue cycle side.  20 


Going back to doing it the way we did it, without 21 


the support of the people who are trying to reform 22 


it, is only going to send our revenues into the 23 


negative column. 24 
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   I think it is a false dichotomy that 1 


has been raised by several speakers. 2 


   Commissioner Sims, however, you have a 3 


different line that you wanted to go on? 4 


   I'm sorry.  We have a late addition.  5 


Are you Mr. Gobby? 6 


  MR. GOBBY:  My name is Omar Gobby.  7 


O-M-A-R; last name Gobby, G-O-B-B-Y. 8 


   I have been a eighteen-year employee 9 


of Cook County/John Stroger Hospital. 10 


   When I first started working there -- 11 


yes, everybody who has never been to the County 12 


before, they heard the stories.  Lazy, dirty, you 13 


are going to die -- blah - blah - blah.  Guess what?  14 


Some of the stereotype was there.  But over the 15 


years it gradually dissipated. 16 


   In my job role as an interpreter, I 17 


think I have one unique perk.  I am everywhere.  18 


There is not a part of the underbelly of that 19 


hospital I have not seen.  I have had to work to 20 


help people in the morgue, material management, on 21 


the wards, the police station, everywhere. 22 


   One of the hardest things I have had 23 


to deal with there is waste.  You look on the wards.  24 
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You have these nurses who are running their asses 1 


off, dispensing medications, doing admissions, 2 


getting a discharge done, because they are 3 


understaffed. 4 


   But then you go down to one of the 5 


clinics -- you have three or four nurses sitting 6 


there.  They are doing Facebook.  I have seen them 7 


playing "Angry Birds".  Making phone calls.  You 8 


know why?  Because there is nothing for them to do.  9 


Why do you need four nurses sitting in a clinic, 10 


especially one clinic in particular?  It brings in 11 


its own nurse so those nurses have even less to do 12 


-- maybe weigh a patient, maybe call a patient and 13 


put them in the room, and that is it. 14 


   You can leave one nurse there.  Take 15 


the other three -- help out my nurses upstairs. 16 


   You have a physical therapy department 17 


right now which has vacancies.  They cannot handle 18 


the outpatient or the inpatient work.  So hire the 19 


people to fill the vacancies. 20 


   Did you know that the County is 21 


offering them $20,000 less to start than any other 22 


healthcare facility?  If I am coming out of school 23 


and I have this job offer here and this job offer 24 
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here for twenty grand more -- see you, County. 1 


   The County does not use a lot of 2 


foresight.  In 2002, we were promised this brand-new 3 


hospital, a state-of-the-art facility; among which 4 


is supposed to be at the top -- OB, GYN, and 5 


pediatrics.  I agree; beautiful units.  Clean units.  6 


Why are they clean?  They are empty.  They are 7 


empty. 8 


   I don't remember the number of how 9 


many NICU beds there are.  We have a double NICU, 10 


which is supposed to be one of the best in the 11 


nation -- that is neonatal intensive care.  It is 12 


supposed to be one of the best in the nation.  If it 13 


is not being used, you may as well turn it into a 14 


general store.  All of these women who could be 15 


coming to County, instead they are going elsewhere 16 


for their prenatal care.  You have this beautiful 17 


facility which is unused.  You had to move a unit 18 


down to the fourth floor, in my cynical mind, to 19 


make it look like something is happening down there, 20 


when they moved the burn unit there because it was 21 


into one of the former GYN wards which was not being 22 


used. 23 


   You have in my own department -- like 24 
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I say, I am an interpreter and I am dealing with 1 


many of them undocumented.  Guess what?  I have had 2 


many patients who are residents, who are citizens, 3 


and they continue to come to County.  They cite 4 


usually two reason, because we, the interpreters, 5 


are there -- I will admit that is a nice little 6 


perk.  But, number two, a lot of them actually like 7 


what they are getting there. 8 


   They like the doctors because, for the 9 


most part, the medical staff -- I am a patient 10 


elsewhere.  My doctor might know me, but if I go to 11 


a specialist they wouldn't know who the heck I am.  12 


At the County, they know you.  They know your 13 


history.  It is not -- okay, so on and so on.  Hey, 14 


Mr. Smith, what is up?  What is going on since the 15 


last time I saw you?  You are not going to see that, 16 


and my patients appreciate it, and they have told me 17 


as much. 18 


   It is just waste.  Cut the waste.  19 


This can't be a good place.  This can be that 20 


beautiful new place that we were promised in 2002, 21 


which, unfortunately, seems to be falling apart, 22 


physically and conceptually. 23 


   With regards to clinic "D", the 24 
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residents of Love Canal, in the 70s, were told it 1 


was safe to return there. 2 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Thank you, Mr. Gobby. 3 


   I believe there are opportunities, or 4 


there were supposed to be opportunities for persons 5 


to volunteer to be involved in the strategic 6 


planning process and the like. 7 


  MR. GOBBY:  Let me know. 8 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Please volunteer.  You 9 


speak with uncommon good sense. 10 


  MR. GOBBY:  I am one of the easiest people 11 


in that place to find. 12 


  DR. MASON:  If I might, I also have what is 13 


called a two-minute chair.  It has been in every 14 


publication that has been out since I have been the 15 


Interim Chief Executive Officer.  I have invited, in 16 


that document -- if people read it -- I have invited 17 


anybody who has an idea or question -- not an HR 18 


complaint or anything like that, but if you have an 19 


idea or something that we can use to make the County 20 


more efficient, I welcome it.  I welcome you, Mr. 21 


Gobby, to call and to make the appointment at my 22 


office to come in -- make an appointment.  It is 23 


called the two-minute chair. 24 
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  MR. GOBBY:  What extension should I call? 1 


  DR. MASON:  Six eight two zero. 2 


  MR. GOBBY:  Thank you.  Commissioner Sims, 3 


you waited very patiently. 4 


  COMMISSIONER SIMS:  Thank you.  I thought 5 


maybe you didn't want to hear from me today. 6 


   First of all, I will say -- and I 7 


still feel the same -- I don't believe we need the 8 


governance board.  I have said that, and I have not 9 


been a proponent of the governance board because I 10 


feel like it is just another layer of bureaucracy 11 


for us and for the hospital. 12 


   I feel if we put the right people in 13 


place we don't need a governance board because I 14 


believe we can give a person who is running that 15 


hospital the authority to do what they need to do.  16 


When Ms. Egan spoke about putting the OB/GYN in the 17 


neonatal clinic next to the dentist's office, that 18 


is terrible.  Then the lady got up and she said it 19 


is going there temporarily -- am I understanding 20 


that correctly? 21 


  MS. SCHNEIDER:  It may be temporary, but at 22 


least a year. 23 


  COMMISSIONER SIMS:  When things are 24 







58 
 
 
 


 ________________________________________________ 
 
 ANTHONY W. LISANTI - (312) 405-1383 


temporary, they have a way of becoming permanent.  1 


If we are going to put them there temporarily -- 2 


nobody is going to wait to 2015 to have a baby, 3 


until the hospital decides they are going to put it 4 


on the first floor.  If we are going to put it on 5 


the first floor, put it on the first floor; don't 6 


put it up there where you have the chemicals that 7 


they can smell.  The clinic on that floor is not 8 


that large. 9 


   If you are going into a dentist's 10 


office, when you hit the floor you can smell the 11 


chemicals as soon as you hit a floor.  You can smell 12 


it if there is a dentist's office.  You know the 13 


smells have to have an effect on the mother, and it 14 


has to have an effect on the baby.  I wouldn't 15 


expect you men to know that because you don't have 16 


babies.  But I expect the ladies in the room that 17 


are working in that hospital to stand up for those 18 


women and say -- we are not going to put it on that 19 


floor; that we should go ahead and put it where it 20 


should be on the first floor. 21 


   We are going to either pay for those 22 


babies twice or we are going to pay for them once.  23 


You know if they come here, they have some kind of 24 
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defect, we are going to get sued.  If I was a mother 1 


and my baby was alright, and then I delivered and it 2 


had some kind of brain situation because I know I 3 


smelled those chemicals, guess where I am going?  I 4 


am going to see my lawyer, and then we are going to 5 


have a suit. 6 


   My suggestion is to whoever's bright 7 


idea that was to rethink it.  If it means to leave 8 


them where they are temporarily, to then move them 9 


where you are going to move them permanent, move 10 


them before 2015. 11 


   Doctor Mason, I don't know if you have 12 


any control over that, but I would suggest that you 13 


have got to talk to whoever you need to talk to to 14 


do that.  We don't want to pay twice.  We are paying 15 


twice on a lot of stuff unnecessarily anyway. 16 


   I am a little disappointed.  When I 17 


came here this morning -- I was running late -- okay 18 


I am running late.  By the time I get there it is 19 


maybe only going to be on the second person.  I just 20 


want to do a brief poll if I can -- how many people 21 


are here from the public?  I am not talking about 22 


County employees and union.  I am talking about the 23 


public -- just one. 24 
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  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Three -- three women 1 


voters and the Civic Federation. 2 


  COMMISSIONER SIMS:  Three people?  The 3 


League of Women Voters?  You should be talking about 4 


this, that this is a public hearing and everybody 5 


here is a County employee and there is no public.  6 


This isn't a public hearing; this is a meet between 7 


County people.  I don't know if your outreach was 8 


poor or the people are so frustrated over the fact 9 


that what happened with Oak Forest Hospital and 10 


Provident Hospital that they just didn't show. 11 


   This is a disgrace.  Because you know 12 


what is going to happen?  When we get ready to do 13 


the budget, all of the people are going to come, and 14 


they are going to make the complaint to us.  They 15 


are not making them to you.  There is a reason why 16 


they are not making them to you -- I don't know what 17 


it is.  But you guys took on this position.  You 18 


should be trying to find out why the people are not 19 


here. 20 


   Where did you put it out?  How public 21 


did you make this for a public hearing? 22 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Do you want me to 23 


answer that? 24 
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  COMMISSIONER SIMS:  Yes, please. 1 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  At the very start of 2 


the hearing -- I don't know whether you were here or 3 


not -- I described that in order to deliver a budget 4 


to the County in time for your to consider your 5 


budget and adopt it before the fiscal year began, we 6 


had to compress the schedule of what we were doing.  7 


I apologized at the beginning that there was short 8 


notice for this, but we thought it was more 9 


important to hold hearings than to not hold 10 


hearings. 11 


   Our ordinance would allow us to not 12 


hold hearings, but I personally feel you always hold 13 


hearings regardless.  But we did have to compress it 14 


so that we can get the budget to you on time for the 15 


President to introduce it so that you can consider 16 


the entire budget before the fiscal year began. 17 


   That is an important consideration to 18 


us because we feel that the System is severely 19 


disadvantaged when the budget is adopted after the 20 


fiscal year begins.  So it was a trade-off, and the 21 


trade-off was delay -- allow more outreach and more 22 


public comment, but then get the budget adopted 23 


after the fiscal year begins, which is not a good 24 
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thing, or do it this way. 1 


  COMMISSIONER SIMS:  David, I have a 2 


question. 3 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  We chose to do it this 4 


way. 5 


  COMMISSIONER SIMS:  David, we do a budget 6 


every year.  Did you all just discover that you guys 7 


were going to do a budget and you need to have a 8 


hearing? 9 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  What do you think the 10 


answer to that question is? 11 


  COMMISSIONER SIMS:  If you knew this, why 12 


were you not getting ready for this in May?  Or why 13 


were you not getting ready for this in June?  This 14 


is a disgrace because the people -- you are not 15 


elected by the people.  You are elected by this 16 


Board.  They are going to ask us -- when was this 17 


hearing; how many people were there; and how come 18 


nobody represented us? 19 


   Look around this room.  My colleagues 20 


that are even here -- it is only three.  How many 21 


press people are here in this room?  But guess what?  22 


They waited for me and Beavers and Collins to come 23 


in to ask us about furlough days.  But there is no 24 







63 
 
 
 


 ________________________________________________ 
 
 ANTHONY W. LISANTI - (312) 405-1383 


interest in what is going on with this hospital.  1 


They are more interested in what we did with our 2 


money than what you are doing with the people's 3 


money. 4 


   That is not right. 5 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  I have given you my 6 


answer.  I really can't amend it or add to it. 7 


   On your first point about whether 8 


there ought to be a board.  I am not going to engage 9 


you on that.  It is not my decision whether there is 10 


a board.  There is only my decision whether I 11 


continue to serve on it.  That is my own personal 12 


decision. 13 


   Mr. Beavers, we want to make sure -- 14 


  COMMISSIONER SIMS:  I'm not done. 15 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  I'm sorry.  Go ahead. 16 


  COMMISSIONER SIMS:  You know, David, you 17 


know for somebody who served on the hospital -- I am 18 


not just picking on you, but you understand this 19 


hospital more than anybody else that is sitting on 20 


that governance board.  You served and you worked 21 


for this System.  You understand what the people 22 


need more than anyone else.  I expect -- and I would 23 


have expected -- you to always fall on the side of 24 
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the people, and I have not seen that from you. 1 


   I am disappointed.  I don't know if 2 


Ruth was here, and she was sitting in this room 3 


somewhere -- I know she is your mentor.  I think she 4 


would be a little disappointed, too. 5 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  If you feel that is 6 


appropriate to say, it is your right to say it. 7 


   Do you have any other questions, 8 


Commissioner? 9 


  COMMISSIONER SIMS:  No. 10 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  We do have one more 11 


public speaker. 12 


   Commissioner Beavers, would you like 13 


to go before or after? 14 


  COMMISSIONER BEAVERS:  Yes.  You might have 15 


some more before I get through because Ruth 16 


Rothstein, I am glad she is gone.  She should have 17 


took you with her, if she was your protégé, or you 18 


were her protégé, because she was the worst thing 19 


that ever happened to this hospital. 20 


   I wish she was here so I could tell it 21 


to her face.  She created the chaos at Cook County 22 


Hospital by telling them not to collect.  She always 23 


believed in socialized medicine.  That is what she 24 
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wanted. 1 


   Ruth Rothstein -- they named a clinic 2 


after her.  I wish I could raise John up out of the 3 


dead and tell him -- I don't know why you did that, 4 


John.  You're my good friend; why would you even 5 


name a building after her? 6 


   But, you know, I ain't never been with 7 


the Board in the first place.  I didn't vote for you 8 


and I still don't like you. 9 


   I want to know one thing:  how are you 10 


going to balance the budget?  Sixty-seven million 11 


dollars short; how are you going to balance it? 12 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  I can speak as one 13 


Board member, but I believe the consensus of our 14 


Board is we feel our responsibility -- 15 


  COMMISSIONER BEAVERS:  You are going to 16 


have to speak a little louder.  I am kind of hard of 17 


hearing or you ain't speaking into the mike. 18 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  I said, I can speak as 19 


one Board member, but from what I have heard from 20 


other Board members, I believe we feel that it is 21 


our responsibility to present to you a budget that 22 


will pay for what we believe needs to be done, and 23 


give you our best judgment as to what we need to 24 
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implement our Strategic Plan.  If you then tell us 1 


that you do not have the resources to pay for it, we 2 


will have to figure out what to do next. 3 


   But at this juncture, I believe our 4 


Board intends to provide you with a budget that we 5 


feel responsibly and efficiently provides the 6 


resources necessary to meet the mission of the 7 


hospital.  That may not be within your resources, in 8 


which case you will have to tell us.  But we don't 9 


think we are doing you a favor by telling you we 10 


need less than we think we need, and tell you we are 11 


going to continue to be able to do everything we 12 


currently do. 13 


   Right now, we are on a trajectory to 14 


adopt a budget next Wednesday.  It comes as close as 15 


we think we can to what we think you have available 16 


to provide, but doesn't cut any of the services that 17 


we are currently offering.  That is our current 18 


plan. 19 


  COMMISSIONER BEAVERS:  Did the President 20 


give you a figure that you should come in with? 21 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  I have seen in the 22 


papers that there is a figure out there. 23 


  COMMISSIONER BEAVERS:  I am talking about 24 
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you.  Not the papers.  Did she give you -- 1 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  The President offered a 2 


budget, I believe, to all units of the County 3 


Government, including ours, that had a number.  It 4 


was lower than the number that we currently have 5 


embedded in our budget.  So there is a gap there 6 


that Doctor Mason and his team continue to talk with 7 


the President's Office about ways to close that gap.  8 


But there is currently a gap between the number that 9 


was in her original budget scenario and what our 10 


current analysis says we need.  There is a gap. 11 


  COMMISSIONER COLLINS: How much? 12 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  I don't want to do the 13 


math in my head.  Does somebody have the number? 14 


  COMMISSIONER COLLINS:  As a Commissioner, 15 


it is important that we know in advance, too.  What 16 


is the difference between what you think is 17 


absolutely necessary, that you are proposing, and 18 


the figure she gave? 19 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  One of the things that 20 


I mentioned at the beginning was, in order to get 21 


your clock running, for purposes of your budget, we 22 


submitted our budget in preliminary form.  So the 23 


item that we are talking today is the preliminary 24 
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version. 1 


   The budget that we would actually 2 


adopt will be next Wednesday.  That will be provided 3 


to you.  So the gap in our preliminary budget, which 4 


is the one that Mr. Cookinham will be calculating, 5 


will not necessarily be the gap on Wednesday because 6 


Doctor Mason and Mr. Cookinham continue to have 7 


dialog internally and with the President's Office 8 


whether there are other efficiencies to be found in 9 


this budget. 10 


   I can give you the preliminary gap -- 11 


Mr. Cookinham. 12 


  MR. COOKINHAM:  I am John Cookinham, 13 


Interim Chief Financial Officer. 14 


   The budget materials we distributed 15 


today, the request is essentially $827.3 million, 16 


plus fixed charges of $104.7.  That would total $932 17 


as the request.  We have a revenue budget of $610.  18 


I am led to believe that $248 is the amount that we 19 


would expect to get from that count. 20 


  MR. BATTS:  That is the target. 21 


  MR. COOKINHAM:  The difference is $74 22 


million at this point in time. 23 


  COMMISSIONER BEAVERS:  Seventy-four 24 
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million. 1 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  In the preliminary 2 


budget, there is a gap of $74 million that Doctor 3 


Mason and Mr. Cookinham and their team continue to 4 


discuss for ways to shrink it. 5 


  COMMISSIONER BEAVERS:  I have one other 6 


question. 7 


   Are you anticipating any layoffs? 8 


  MR. BATTS:  This is Warren Batts.  If we 9 


get the budget approved that we have requested, no 10 


massive layoffs, large layoffs. 11 


  COMMISSIONER BEAVERS:  I didn't say 12 


massive; I said layoffs. 13 


  MR. BATTS:  Terry, can you address that? 14 


  DR. MASON:  Commissioner Beavers, our 15 


current budget that I presented today anticipates no 16 


layoffs.  It was the directive of the Board to 17 


prepare a budget that did not contemplate layoffs, 18 


program changes, or closures of facilities.  That is 19 


the budget that we presented. 20 


  COMMISSIONER BEAVERS:  Will you tell Mr. 21 


Batts when I ask him a question again so he won't 22 


say "we don't anticipate any massive layoffs".  Tell 23 


him what you just told me.  You don't anticipate any 24 
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layoffs at all? 1 


  DR. MASON:  In the budget that we currently 2 


presented, as our preliminary budget. 3 


  COMMISSIONER BEAVERS:  Did you hear that, 4 


Mr. Batts? 5 


  MR. BATTS:  Thank you, sir.  We have one 6 


thousand vacancies in our budget.  We plan to fill 7 


twenty percent of those this year.  We would like to 8 


fill them all, but there is no way we are going to 9 


get the money to do that.  We are on a "wing and a 10 


prayer" right now, Mr. Beavers. 11 


  COMMISSIONER BEAVERS:  Thank you, Mr. 12 


Chairman. 13 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  I want to make sure -- 14 


are there any other questions from any of the other 15 


Commissioners -- Commissioner Butler, Commissioner 16 


Sims, or Commissioner Collins? 17 


   There was one more public speaker, I 18 


believe, who has signed up. 19 


   Ms. Beverly Esters -- Ms. Esters. 20 


  MS. ESTERS:  Hi.  I am Beverly Esters, 21 


E-S-T-E-R-S.  I am a worker in the adult emergency 22 


at John Stroger.  I have a couple of concerns. 23 


   Number one, with all the people that 24 
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come in, a lot of people have no ID.  Therefore, 1 


they can give any address, any phone number.  Where 2 


do we send the bill? 3 


   Another concern of mine is security.  4 


In the last month, a couple of incidents have 5 


happened at the desk where a printer was thrown at 6 


the nurse, where there was no officer.  With most 7 


emergencies, you have to be buzzed in.  We are 8 


registering people face-to-face.  A lot of hospitals 9 


have a shield door.  We are right by trauma.  There 10 


has been incidents where the officers had to just 11 


take over and shut it down. 12 


   I am really concerned that something 13 


is going to happen in that ER because there should 14 


be an officer at that door, at each side, at all 15 


times. 16 


   Another thing, if you don't have an 17 


ID, I'm sorry, you shouldn't be seen.  There should 18 


be a sign there, "No ID, no service".  I am 19 


indigent, too, and I work there. 20 


  COMMISSIONER BEAVERS:  Let me tell you, 21 


County Hospital is just what it says; it is a county 22 


hospital.  If you got no money, they should treat 23 


you.  If you ain't got no identification, they 24 
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should treat you.  Do you understand?  You don't 1 


need identification to get treated. 2 


  MS. ESTERS:  Okay, but you can eliminate 3 


Pricewaterhouse; you can eliminate Chamberlin 4 


Edmonds doing the job of what the clerks should be 5 


doing.  You could eliminate that. 6 


  COMMISSIONER BEAVERS:  I already said that 7 


we had people over there that can do better than 8 


they do, but you are not going to mistreat people 9 


because they got no ID or they give you the wrong 10 


address.  So they give you the wrong address; what 11 


difference does it make? 12 


  MS. ESTERS:  You have got the same people 13 


coming all the time with no address and no job. 14 


  COMMISSIONER BEAVERS:  This is a county 15 


hospital.  You should be there. 16 


  MS. ESTERS:  You see them at a restaurant 17 


working. 18 


  COMMISSIONER BEAVERS:  So what? 19 


  MS. ESTERS:  Okay.  That is your opinion. 20 


  COMMISSIONER BEAVERS:  Take care of the 21 


people.  Take care of the poor.  The poor and the 22 


indigent -- take care of them. 23 


  MS. ESTERS:  Okay.  That is what you say.  24 
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When I go to the doctor, they ask me for my ID. 1 


  COMMISSIONER BEAVERS:  That is because you 2 


have got a job and you got healthcare.  Unemployment 3 


is sixteen percent in the black community.  These 4 


are people that ain't got no job. 5 


  MS. ESTERS:  But you have got people coming 6 


from New Zealand, Africa, Poland, from everywhere, 7 


just for the service.  So what about that?  What 8 


about the ones that come -- I am from Australia and 9 


I am just here and I need an operation.  We need 10 


security in the ER before something seriously -- 11 


before someone seriously gets hurt. 12 


   We are right by trauma.  Sometimes 13 


there can be a massive family upset about their 14 


loved ones.  Not only me; a lot of people in the ER 15 


feel they are a threat. 16 


  COMMISSIONER BEAVERS:  That is at every 17 


hospital. 18 


  MS. ESTERS:  At every hospital, they buzz 19 


you in and out of ER.  You just can't walk up 20 


freely, pick up lunch, get in the bed, eat lunch, 21 


leave. 22 


  COMMISSIONER BEAVERS:  At every hospital, 23 


they have a problem. 24 
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  MS. ESTERS:  Every hospital has security 1 


for their employees. 2 


  COMMISSIONER BEAVERS:  You have got 3 


hospital security.  Where are they at? 4 


  MS. ESTERS:  That is what I want to know.  5 


There should be one at every door. 6 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  If I might interject -- 7 


I think we are placing a challenge on the court 8 


reporter at this point.  While the Board members and 9 


public know that I do not try to run a strictly 10 


disciplined meeting, I think in light of the court 11 


reporter -- I think we probably need to bring this 12 


discussion to a close. 13 


  COMMISSIONER SIMS:  I have a question for 14 


you. 15 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Commissioner Sims. 16 


  COMMISSIONER SIMS:  She brought up a very 17 


valid point.  What do we do if somebody comes in 18 


fro, Australia, and they come in and they don't have 19 


any insurance.  They say they are from Australia.  20 


We know that they are from there and we say -- okay, 21 


do you have insurance?  All of a sudden they can't 22 


articulate whether they have it or not.  All of a 23 


sudden you can only understand that they have an 24 
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ailment.  What do we do in that case?  I know that 1 


that is probably a lot of -- 2 


  COMMISSIONER BEAVERS:  You treat them and 3 


send them back to Australia. 4 


  COMMISSIONER SIMS:  I want to know what 5 


efforts do we make in order to try to collect on 6 


those patients? 7 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  As you can appreciate 8 


because you have been around this issue for a long 9 


time, this is one of the central challenges at 10 


County Hospital.  You can at one extreme treat 11 


everyone without question and without care as to 12 


whether they are giving you correct information.  13 


But that will severely impact your ability to 14 


collect revenues for those patients who could have 15 


been on Medicaid, if you had the information they 16 


gave you, or perhaps could have even had insurance 17 


and you could have charged. 18 


   If you totally have a policy that 19 


totally disregards collecting information, you 20 


undermine your revenues.  On the other hand, if you 21 


go to the opposite extreme where you behave just 22 


like any private hospital, you have done exactly 23 


just what Commissioner Beavers has said: you have 24 
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abandoned your mission.  That is not your mission to 1 


turn away people who are in need of care. 2 


   This has been an issue that the System 3 


has struggled with for a long time, and the policies 4 


have been modified over time. 5 


   The way the System Board resolved this 6 


issue is the program called "CareLink" that was on 7 


one of the slides that Doctor Mason described.  It 8 


tries to find a middle ground there.  What it does 9 


is exactly as Commissioner Beavers said with respect 10 


to the people who are certainly in need of emergency 11 


or urgent care.  You treat people without regard to 12 


whether they have got an insurance card or -- 13 


  COMMISSIONER SIMS:  I understand what our 14 


mission is. 15 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  But with respect to the 16 


discount -- I think the Commissioners all know this, 17 


but the public sometimes doesn't.  Cook County 18 


Hospital does not have a mission of providing free 19 


care.  It has a mission of providing care to all 20 


without regard to the ability to pay and provides a 21 


discount to everybody who is poor.  For most poor 22 


people, it becomes free.  But our current policies 23 


say -- if I showed up and I am insured, and I am at 24 
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County, my insurance is supposed to get charged.  If 1 


I have means, and if I am a young person who is 2 


making a very good income, but has chosen not to get 3 


insurance, and I show up at County, I am supposed to 4 


get a bill.  It is not supposed to be free for 5 


persons who have higher income, but it is open to 6 


persons without regard to the ability to pay. 7 


   What we do is we provide care to 8 


everyone without regard to the ability to pay.  But 9 


if you cannot show that you are a resident, you are 10 


charged the full bill.  But whether you pay it is 11 


another problem.  If you are a resident, but you are 12 


above four hundred percent of poverty level, you are 13 


sent a full bill.  It is only a discount available 14 


to lower income residents. 15 


  COMMISSIONER SIMS:  Let me ask you this 16 


question.  When I first got on this Board -- and you 17 


were here; you were here long before I was -- we 18 


wrote off $10 million.  I can remember that was the 19 


biggest thing, I think, that stayed in my mind 20 


because I could not believe that we were writing of 21 


$10 million.  I thought, "Wow.  That is just a lot 22 


of money for us not to collect, and we are just 23 


going to write it off." 24 
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   If we were to write off our debt 1 


today, how much would we be asking this Board to 2 


write off? 3 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  We can find that exact 4 


number.  I don't have it right on the tip of my 5 


tongue, but I actually need to help refresh your 6 


recollection. 7 


   Over the time you served on the Board, 8 


you probably have written off a billion dollars in 9 


charges.  What used to happen -- as you know, every 10 


hospital has something that is called their 11 


chargemaster.  That is like a retail price.  Nobody 12 


pays retail.  Blue Cross gets a discount.  Medicaid 13 


pays whatever they want.  Medicare pays whatever 14 


they want.  But the hospital accounts for the 15 


services they provide at their stated charges, which 16 


is usually high. 17 


   Then the difference between the stated 18 


charges and what they actually collect has to be 19 


written off. 20 


   For the longest time, the Cook County 21 


Hospital System, and the people in the Finance 22 


Department, if they were to be honest with you, were 23 


scared to come to seek write-offs because they 24 
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thought that it wasn't well understood, and they 1 


were going to get beat up for it.  So it would 2 


accumulate - it would accumulate - it would 3 


accumulate.  Then finally the auditors would say -- 4 


you have to go get that write-off.  They would come 5 


in with hundreds of millions of dollars at a time to 6 


be written off. 7 


   Now, I should tell you that writing 8 


off the difference between charges and what you 9 


collect -- every hospital does.  It is just that 10 


Cook County is the one that does it in public.  The 11 


difference is so big because so many of the persons 12 


-- you are writing off everything. 13 


  COMMISSIONER SIMS:  Give us an amount that 14 


we would be writing off if we did that, if we just 15 


said -- okay, after this budget, we are going to 16 


start fresh; we are going to have our people in 17 


Washington try to find us some additional money, or 18 


we tell the Federal Government -- you know what, we 19 


have got to write this off.  In order for us to 20 


continue to provide service, we need to write off 21 


"X" amount of dollars to put us in the black. 22 


   We start running our tab from November 23 


1.  How much would it take for us to get there?  24 
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That means no layoffs, no furlough days, we got Oak 1 


Forest up and running, and everything.  What would 2 


that dollar amount be, and how, if possible, we can 3 


start to maybe going after that?  So then we can say 4 


-- okay, we are starting anew.  If we don't do this 5 


stuff right at this time, then we know who is really 6 


responsible and whose heads really need to roll. 7 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  If I could, and then I 8 


believe Mr. Cookinham wants to jump in, too. 9 


   I think we may want to have a separate 10 


meeting because the answer may be more involved than 11 


is good for a short meeting. 12 


   The thing is, the write-offs that we 13 


are talking about are not things that impact the 14 


budget because if you anticipate it at the start of 15 


the year, for example, as we do, that somewhere 16 


between forty-five and fifty-five percent of the 17 


inpatients are going to be self-pay -- and we are 18 


not going to receive any resources -- that is how we 19 


budget. 20 


   Now how we account for it is this 21 


issue of charges and writing off charges and all of 22 


that.  Those are essentially noncash matters.  They 23 


appear on your balance sheet.  They make your 24 







81 
 
 
 


 ________________________________________________ 
 
 ANTHONY W. LISANTI - (312) 405-1383 


accountants happy that they are recorded that way, 1 


but they are not really a cash matter. 2 


   For example, one of the things that 3 


CareLink is going to do -- if you look at our 4 


numbers you will see that a whole lot of people get 5 


assigned to self-pay.  A very small number of people 6 


get assigned to charity care, and then a whole lot 7 


of the self-pay get written off.  That is because we 8 


haven't had the processes in place to identify a lot 9 


of those self-pay as charity care. 10 


   Up front, they haven't provided the 11 


right documentation.  Rather than hold up the 12 


process, they just get assigned to self-pay, and 13 


then down the road, of course, since they have no 14 


resources, those are people who probably should have 15 


been charity care first.  None of this affects cash. 16 


  COMMISSIONER SIMS:  Okay.  That means that 17 


we need to start to think about this.  If we know 18 


that going in, and we can predict revenue 19 


projections and how much we think is going to be our 20 


actual charity care and how much we think is our 21 


actual no-pay -- if we know that going in, and 22 


somehow you guys got to show that, then we should be 23 


trying to write that stuff off right at the 24 
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beginning of every year and say -- at the beginning 1 


of the year our revenue projection was this; we did 2 


not meet it.  This is what we are writing off.  It 3 


doesn't appear in this document.  This is what we 4 


wrote off.  We get a document that says -- like you 5 


guys didn't want to sit up here and tell us about 6 


the $10 million -- that has got to happen. 7 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Again, I am not doing a 8 


very good job of it because I am not an accountant.  9 


Where the write-offs occur are not in your budget. 10 


They are in your financial statements.  The reason 11 


why they are not in your budget document is because 12 


that is not where they would be reflected.  They 13 


would be reflected -- I don't know who your 14 


accountants are now -- it is DeLoitte -- when you 15 


see your accounting statements is where these write-16 


offs are reflected. 17 


   I believe we have now started doing 18 


exactly what you said.  In terms of on the 19 


accounting side of things, we are doing the write-20 


offs more regularly.  And, as we better implement 21 


CareLink, more of those charges right at day one 22 


will be assigned to charity care, and won't become 23 


artificially part of self-pay, then written off 24 
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because there is no collection. 1 


   We have started doing exactly what you 2 


suggested, and this will be done on a continuous 3 


basis rather than pile up.  We can talk about this 4 


with you more outside of the hearing. 5 


  COMMISSIONER SIMS:  If that shows with 6 


DeLoitte, then that document should be somewhere in 7 


your front page of our budget book, when you get the 8 


budget.  Somehow figure out how you tell us that. 9 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  We will meet with you 10 


and talk.  The budget is a document about cash. 11 


  COMMISSIONER SIMS:  I understand that, and 12 


the other is about finance.  I understand that. 13 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Why don't we find a 14 


time to meet with you and go into this in some more 15 


detail?  But the impact of doing CareLink properly 16 


will lead to your and our financial statements 17 


looking better.  They won't help us on the budget 18 


side, but they will better describe what is going 19 


on.  It looks kind of dumb for us to say there is 20 


all these self-pay patients, then they don't pay 21 


their bills and the small amount of charity care, 22 


when we know that we are providing a vast amount of 23 


charity care, and we might as well describe it that 24 
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way. 1 


   In my day job, we put up on our 2 


website at the State the charity care of all of the 3 


hospitals.  Cook County's number should be the 4 


highest number there.  It is actually not because so 5 


many of those people are recorded as self-pay, and 6 


then written off. 7 


   Since we are providing so much charity 8 


care, I want our numbers to show the public that we 9 


are providing a lot of charity care. 10 


  COMMISSIONER SIMS:  I am going to say you 11 


can hire probably me and Bobbie Steele to come over 12 


and show you how to fix those admissions.  I still 13 


think there is a problem with it.  When she was my 14 


seatmate, we had those discussions about how do we 15 


do that.  Maybe you need to have us come over and 16 


show you how to do it because apparently, with all 17 


of the vendors and things that we have in that 18 


hospital, they can't seem to get it right.  Maybe 19 


they need to have us come over there and show them 20 


how to do it and spend some time over there. 21 


  COMMISSIONER BEAVERS:  Why don't you do 22 


that? 23 


  COMMISSIONER SIMS:  Show them how to do it 24 
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right because I can't understand how after all of 1 


these years it is not done right. 2 


  COMMISSIONER BEAVERS:  Why don't you do 3 


that? 4 


  COMMISSIONER SIMS:  I am willing. 5 


  COMMISSIONER BEAVERS:  Go on over there.  6 


You have got the authority to go over there and do 7 


that. 8 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  I will stay out of your 9 


conversation, but I will suggest that when we meet 10 


to talk about the financial statements, we should 11 


talk about that, too. 12 


   Thank you. 13 


  COMMISSIONER SIMS:  Me and you should go 14 


over there to do it. 15 


  COMMISSIONER BEAVERS:  I don't like them in 16 


the first place.  I don't even want to be over 17 


there. 18 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Commissioner Butler, 19 


did you have something? 20 


  COMMISSIONER BUTLER:  The question before 21 


us today is $934 million.  That is what we need to 22 


operate next year.  All of this other stuff is 23 


foolishness.  Where are we going to get the $934 24 
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million that you represented as your budget going 1 


forward to the next year? 2 


   The reason we have so many "interims" 3 


around here is because we have so many bosses.  It 4 


is a bad situation. 5 


   I have held my peace as much as I can.  6 


When we finish this conversation, the question is 7 


going to be, "How much will Cook County Government 8 


subsidize towards that $934 million?"  I think we 9 


have got $610 of it that came in on the revenue -- 10 


is that the number?  Is that correct? 11 


  DR. MASON:  Yes, sir. 12 


  COMMISSIONER BUTLER:  So subtract $610 from 13 


$934.  That is how much Cook County is going to have 14 


to come up with, and then let's see who votes for 15 


it.  That will give you the answer to your problem. 16 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Thank you, Commissioner 17 


Butler. 18 


  COMMISSIONER BUTLER:  You're welcome. 19 


  DIRECTOR CARVALHO:  Are there any other 20 


comments or questions?  Or reasons not to adjourn? 21 


   If not, let me thank everyone for 22 


coming.  The next meeting of the Board will be on 23 


Friday.  That will be handling business.  The next 24 
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meeting on the budget will be next Wednesday.  That 1 


will be handling this budget. 2 


   Thank you. 3 
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